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Capital Adequacy Framework 2018

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 BACKGROUND:

Prior to 1988, there was no uniform international regulatory standard for setting bank capital
requirements. In 1988, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS)! developed the Capital
Accord, which is known as Basel |, to align the capital adequacy requirements applicable especially
to banks in G-10 countries. Basel | introduced two key concepts. First, it defined what banks could
hold as capital, as well as designating capital as Tier 1 or Tier 2 according to its loss-absorbing or
creditor-protecting characteristics. The second key concept introduced in Basel | was that capital
should be held by banks in relation to the risks that they face. The major risks faced by banks relate to
the assets held on balance sheet. Thus, Basel I calculated banks’ minimum capital requirements as a
percentage of assets, which are adjusted in accordance with their riskiness and assigning risk weights
to assets. Higher weights are assigned to riskier assets such as corporate loans, and lower weights are
assigned to less risky assets, such as exposures to government.

The BCBS released the "International Convergence of Capital Measurements and Capital Standards:
Revised Framework", popularly known as Basel |l, on June 26, 2004. This framework was updated in
November 2005 and a comprehensive version of the framework was issued in June 2006. Basel Il
builds significantly on Basel | by increasing the sensitivity of capital to key bank risks. In addition,
Basel Il recognizes that banks can face a multitude of risks, ranging from the traditional risks
associated with financial intermediation to the day-to-day risks of operating a business as well as the
risks associated with the ups and downs of the local and international economies. As a result, the
framework more explicitly associates capital requirements with the particular categories of major
risks that banks face.

The Basel Il capital framework also recognizes that large, usually internationally active banks have
already put in place sophisticated approaches to risk measurement and management based on
statistical inference rather than judgment alone. Thus, the framework allows banks, under certain
conditions, to use their own ‘internal’ models and techniques to measure the key risks that they face,
the probability of loss, and the capital required to meet those losses. In developing the new
framework, the Basel Committee incorporated many elements that help to promote a sound and
efficient financial system over and above the setting of minimum capital requirements. Keeping this
in mind, the Basel II framework incorporates three complementary ‘pillars’ that draw on the range of
approaches to help ensure that banks are adequately capitalized commensurate with their risk profile.

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) released a comprehensive reform package
entitled “Basel III: A global regulatory framework for more resilient banks and banking systems”
(known as Basel 11 capital regulations) in December 2010. Basel 11l reforms are the response of the
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) to improve the banking sector’s ability to absorb
shocks arising from financial and economic stress, whatever the source, thus reducing the risk of spill
over from the financial sector to the real economy. Basel Il reforms strengthen the bank-level i.e.
micro prudential regulation, with the intention to raise the resilience of individual banking institutions
in periods of stress. Besides, the reforms have a macro prudential focus also, addressing system wide
risks, which can build up across the banking sector, as well as the procyclical amplification of these

1 The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision is a committee of banking supervisory authorities that was established by the
central bank governors of the Group of Ten countries in 1975. It consists of senior representatives of bank supervisory authorities
and central banks from Belgium, Canada, France, Germany, lItaly, Japan, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Spain, Sweden,
Switzerland, the United Kingdom, and the United States. It usually meets at the Bank for International Settlements in Basel,
Switzerland where its permanent Secretariat is located.
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risks over time. These new global regulatory and supervisory standards mainly seek to raise the
quality and level of capital (Pillar 1) to ensure that banks are better able to absorb losses on both a
going concern and a gone concern basis, increase the risk coverage of the capital framework,
introduce leverage ratio to serve as a backstop to the risk-based capital measure, raise the standards
for the supervisory review process (Pillar 2) and public disclosures (Pillar 3) etc. The macro
prudential aspects of Basel 111 are largely enshrined in the capital buffers. Both buffers i.e. the capital
conservation buffer and the countercyclical buffer are intended to protect the banking sector from
periods of excess credit growth.

The recommendations of Basel Committee on Banking Supervision's (BCBS) on capital accord are
important guiding frameworks for the regulatory capital requirement to the banking industry all over
the world and Nepal is no exception. Realizing the significance of capital for ensuring the safety and
soundness of the banks and the banking system, at large, Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) has developed
and enforced capital adequacy requirement based on international practices with an appropriate level
of customization based on domestic state of market developments.

With a view of adopting the international best practices, NRB has already issued the Basel Il
implementation action plan and expressed its intention to adopt the Basel 11l framework, albeit in a
simplified form. In line with the international development and thorough discussion with the
stakeholders, evaluation and assessment of impact studies at various phases, this framework has been
drafted. This framework provides the guidelines for the implementation of Basel Il framework in
Nepal. The Basel Il capital regulations continue to be based on three-mutually reinforcing Pillars,
viz. minimum capital requirements, supervisory review of capital adequacy, and market discipline of
the Basel Il capital adequacy framework.

OBJECTIVE:

The main objective of this framework is to develop the safe and sound financial system by way of
sufficient amount of qualitative capital and risk management practices. This framework is intended to
ensure that each bank maintains a level of capital which,

(i) isadequate to protect its depositors and creditors.
(ii) is commensurate with the risk associated activities and profile of the bank.
(iii) promotes public confidence in the banking system.

PRE-REQUISITES:

The effective implementation of this framework is dependent on various factors. Some such pre-
requisites are:

(i) Implementation of Basel Core Principles for effective Banking Supervision.
(ii) Adoption of the sound practices for the management of Operational Risk.
(iii) Formulation and adoption of comprehensive risk management policy.
(iv) Adherence to high degree of corporate governance.

RESPONSIBILITY:

The board of directors of each bank shall be responsible for establishing and maintaining, at all times,
an adequate level of capital. The capital standards herein are the minimum that is acceptable for
banks that are fundamentally sound, well managed, and have no material financial or operational
weaknesses. Thus, banks are generally expected to operate above the limits prescribed by this
framework.

SCOPE OF APPLICATION:

This framework shall be applicable to all Infrastructure Development Banks licensed to conduct
banking business in Nepal under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073.
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This capital adequacy framework shall be applicable uniformly to all Infrastructure Development
Bankson a stand-alone basis and as well as on a consolidated basis, where the bank is member of a
consolidated banking group. For the purpose of capital adequacy, the consolidated bank means a
group of financial entities, parent or holding company of which a bank is a subsidiary. All banking
and other relevant financial activities (both regulated and unregulated) conducted within a group
including a bank shall be captured through consolidation. Thus, majority owned or controlled
financial entities should be fully consolidated. If any majority owned subsidiary institutions are not
consolidated for capital purposes, all equity and other regulatory capital investments in those entities
attributable to the group will be deducted and the assets and liabilities, as well as third party capital
investments in the subsidiary will be removed from the bank’s balance sheet for capital adequacy
purposes.

APPROACHES TO IMPLEMENTATION:

"International Convergence for Capital Measurements and Capital Standards: Revised Framework",
Basel Il under Pillar 1, provides three distinct approaches for computing capital requirements for
credit risk and three other approaches for computing capital requirements for operational risk. These
approaches for credit and operational risk are based on increasing risk sensitivity and allow banks to
select an approach that is most appropriate to the stage of development of banks’ operations.

The products and services offered by the Nepalese Banks are still largely conventional, in comparison
to other economies. Considering the starting phase of credit rating practice of Nepal, Standardized
Approach (SA) to measure credit risk while Basic Indicator Approach and an indigenous Net Open
Position Approach for measurement of Operational Risk and Market Risk is adopted respectively.
These approaches have been customized to deal with Nepalese financial and banking sector
development.

IMPLEMENTATION OF ADVANCED APPROACHES:

This framework prescribes the simplest of the available approaches at the initial phase with a vision
to move onto more complex and risk sensitive approaches as the market gradually gains maturity.
Banks willing to adopt advanced approaches, even for internal purposes, should obtain prior written
approval from Nepal Rastra Bank on providing evidence that they have the resources and the
capability to adopt the proposed approaches.

A bank will not be allowed to choose to revert to a simpler approach once it has been approved for a
more advanced approach without supervisory approval. However, if a supervisor determines that a
bank using a more advanced approach no longer meets the qualifying criteria for an advanced
approach, it may allow the bank to revert to a simpler approach for some or all of its operations, until
it meets the conditions specified by the supervisor for returning to a more advanced approach.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY REQUIREMENT
Capital ratios will be as follows:-
S.No. Regulatory Capital Percentage
1. [Minimum Common Equity Capital Ratio 4.50
2.  |Capital Conservation Buffer 2.50
3. |Minimum common equity plus capital conservation buffer 7.00
4 Minimum Tier 1 Capital 6.00
(Excluding conservation buffer)

5. |Minimum Total Capital 8.50
(Excluding conservation buffer)

6.  |Minimum Total Capital (including conservation buffer ) 11.00

7. |Counter Cyclical Buffers* 0-2.5
Leverage Ratio 3

*The banks are required to maintain the countercyclical buffer of 0.5% by the end of FY 2080/81.

%
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REQUIREMENTS FOR CAPITAL FUNDS

DEFINITION OF CAPITAL.:
The qualifying regulatory capital shall consist of the sum of the following components:
a.Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital)
A. Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)
B. Additional Tier 1 (AT1)
b.Tier 2 Capital (Supplementary Capital)
The detailed description of the components of regulatory capital and their elements are as follows:
I. Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital)

The key element of capital on which the main emphasis should be placed is Tier 1 (core) capital,
which is comprised of equity capital and disclosed reserves. This key element of capital is the basis
on which most market judgments of capital adequacy are made; and it has a crucial bearing on profit
margins and a bank's ability to compete.

The BCBS has therefore concluded that capital, for supervisory purposes, should be defined in two
tiers in a way, which will have the effect of requiring at least 50% of a bank's capital base to consist
of a core element comprised of equity capital and published reserves from post-tax retained earnings.

In order to rank as Tier 1, capital must be fully paid up, have no fixed servicing or dividend costs
attached to it and be freely available to absorb losses ahead of general creditors. Capital also needs to
have a very high degree of permanence if it is to be treated as Tier 1.

Tier 1 Capital shall consist of Common Equity Tier 1 Capital and Additional Tier 1 Capital and the
sum of these two capitals shall be total Tier 1 Capital.

A. Common Equity Tier 1Capital

Common Equity is recognized as the highest quality component of capital and is the primary form of
funding which ensures that a bank remains solvent. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital consists of the
sum of the following elements:

(i)  Common shares issued by the bank that meet the criteria for classification as common shares for
regulatory purposes;

(if)  Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of instruments included in Common Equity
Tier 1;

(iif) ~ Statutory General Reserve;
(iv) Retained Earnings available for distribution to shareholders;

(v)  Un-audited current year cumulative profit, after all provisions including staff bonus and taxes.
Where such provisions are not made, this amount shall not qualify as Common Equity Tier 1 capital,

(vi) Capital Redemption Reserves created in lieu of redeemable instruments

(vii) Capital Adjustment reserves created in respect of increasing the capital base of the bank
(viii) Dividend Equalization Reserves;

(ix)  Other free reserves if any

(x)  Any other type of instruments notified by NRB from time to time for inclusion in Common Equity
Tier 1 capital;and

(xi) Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Common Equity
Tier 1 capital.



Criteria for common shares issued by the bank for inclusion in Common Equity:

Common shares must meet the following criteria to be included in Common Equity Tier 1 Capital:

1.
2.
3.

10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

All common shares should be voting shares.
Represent the most subordinate claim in liquidation of the bank.

Be entitled to a claim on the residual assets which is proportional to its share of paid up capital, after
all senior claims have been repaid in liquidation (i.e. has an unlimited and variable claim, not a fixed
or capped claim).

Principal is perpetual and never repaid outside of liquidation (except discretionary repurchases / buy
backs or other means of effectively reducing capital in a discretionary manner with the prior
approval of NRB which is allowable under relevant law as well as guidelines, if any, issued by NRB
in the matter).

The bank does nothing to create an expectation at issuance that the instrument will be bought back,
redeemed or cancelled nor do the statutory or contractual terms provide any feature which might
give rise to such an expectation.

Distributions are paid out of distributable items. The level of distributions is not in any way tied or
linked to the amount paid up at issuance and is not subject to a contractual cap (except to the extent
that a bank is unable to pay distributions that exceed the level of distributable items). As regards
‘distributable items’, it is clarified that the dividend on common shares will be paid out of the
current year’s profit and retained earnings only.

There are no circumstances under which the distributions are obligatory. Non-payment is therefore
not an event of default.

Distributions are paid only after all legal and contractual obligations have been met and payments on
more senior capital instruments have been made. This means that there are no preferential
distributions, including in respect of other elements classified as the highest quality issued capital.

It is the paid up capital that takes the first and proportionately greatest share of any losses as they
occur. Within the highest quality capital, each instrument absorbs losses on a going concern basis
proportionately and pari passu with all the others.

The paid up amount is classified as equity capital (i.e. not recognised as a liability) for determining
balance sheet insolvency.

The paid up amount is classified as equity under the relevant accounting standards.

It is directly issued and paid up and the bank cannot directly or indirectly have funded the purchase
of the instrument. Banks should also not extend loans against their own shares.

The paid up amount is neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related entity nor
subject to any other arrangement that legally or economically enhances the seniority of the claim.

Paid up capital is only issued with the approval of the owners of the issuing bank, either given
directly by the owners or, if permitted by applicable law, given by the Board of Directors or by other
persons duly authorized by the owners.

Paid up capitalis clearly and separately disclosed in the bank’s balance sheet.

B. Additional Tier 1Capital

Additional Tier 1 Capital mainly include the instruments either classified as equity under relevant
accounting standards but are not the common equity share and hence not includible in common
equity tier 1 or the instrument which are classified as liabilities under relevant accounting
standards, however it is includible in additional tier 1 capital. Under Basel 11l hon-common equity
elements to be included in Tier 1 capital should absorb losses while the bank remains a going
concern. Towards this end, one of the important criteria for Additional Tier 1 instruments is that
these instruments should have principal loss absorption through either (i) conversion into common
shares at an objective pre-specified trigger point or (ii) a write-down mechanism which allocates

c



losses to the instrument at a pre-specified trigger point. Banks should not issue Additional Tier 1
capital instruments to the retail investors.

Additional Tier 1 capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

Q) Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share (PNCPS) and Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI) issued
by the bank that meet the criteria for inclusion in Additional Tier 1 capital;

(i) Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of PNCPS instruments included in
Additional Tier 1 capital; and

(iii)  Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Additional Tier 1 capital.

Criteria for Instruments issued by the bank for inclusion in Additional Tier 1:

Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share (PNCPS) and Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI)
issued by the bank must meet the following criteria to be included in Additional Tier 1 Capital:

1. The instruments should be issued by the Bank (i.e. not by any ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’ etc.
set up by the bank for this purpose)and fully paid up.

2. The claim of investors of the instruments shall be:
(A) In case of Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Shares:
(i) Superior to the claims of investors in equity shares; and

(if) Subordinated to the claims of PDIs, all Tier 2 regulatory capital instruments, depositors and
general creditors of the bank.

(B) In case of Perpetual Debt Instruments:

(i) Superior to the claims of investors in equity shares and perpetual non-cumulative
preference shares;

(ii) Subordinated to the claims of depositors, general creditors and subordinated debt of the
bank;

3. The instruments should be neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related
entity or other arrangement that legally or economically enhances the seniority of the claim
vis-a-vis bank creditors

4. The instruments should be perpetual, i.e., there is no maturity date and there are no step-ups
or other incentives to redeem

5. The Instruments may be callable at the initiative of the issuer. This means that the
instruments shall not be issued with “Put Option”. However, banks may issue instruments
with a “Call Option” at a particular date subject to following conditions:

a) The call option on the instrument is permissible after ten years of issuance;

b)To exercise a call option a bank must receive prior approval of NRB;

¢) A bank must not do anything which creates an expectation that the call will be exercised.; and
d)Banks must not exercise a call unless:

i. The bank replaces the called instrument with capital of the same or better quality and the
replacement of this capital is done at conditions which are sustainable for the income
capacity of the bank; or

ii. The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum capital
requirements after the call option is exercised.

6. Any repayment of principal (eg. through repurchase, buy-back or redemption) must be with
prior approval of NRB and banks should not assume or create market expectations that
supervisory approval will be given. Banks may repurchase / buy-back / redeem the

N



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

instruments only if:

(a) The bank replaces such instrument with capital of the same or better quality and the
replacement of this capital is done at conditions which are sustainable for the income
capacity of the bank; or

(b) The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum capital
requirements after the repurchase / buy-back / redemption.

Dividend/coupon discretion:

a.the bank must have full discretion at all times to cancel distributions/payments;
b.cancellation of discretionary payments must not be an event of default;

c. banks must have full access to cancelled payments to meet obligations as they fall due; and

d.cancellation of distributions/payments must not impose restrictions on the bank except in
relation to distributions to common stockholders.

Dividends/coupons must be paid out of ‘distributable items’:

As regards ‘distributable items’, it is clarified that the dividend on perpetual non-cumulative
preference shares (PNCPS) will be paid out of current year’s profit only.

In case of coupon on perpetual debt instruments (PDI), it is clarified that if the payment of
coupons on perpetual debt instrument (PDI) is likely to result in losses in the current year,
their declaration should be precluded to that extent.

Dividend on PNCPS and coupons on PDI should not be paid out of retained earnings /
reserves. In other words, payment of dividend/coupons should not have the effect of reducing
retained earnings / reserves.

The instrument cannot have a credit sensitive dividend/coupon feature, that is a
dividend/coupon that is reset periodically based in whole or in part on the banking
organization's credit standing.

The dividend/coupon shall not be cumulative. i.e., dividend/coupon missed in a year will not
be paid in future years, even if adequate profit is available and the level of CAR conforms to
the regulatory minimum. When dividend/coupon is paid at a rate lesser than the prescribed
rate, the unpaid amount will not be paid in future years, even if adequate profit is available
and the level of CAR conforms to the regulatory minimum.

The instrument cannot contribute to liabilities exceeding assets if such a balance sheet test
forms part of requirement to prove insolvency by any law or otherwise.

Instruments classified as liabilities for accounting purposes must have principal loss
absorption through either (i) conversion to common shares at an objective pre-specified
trigger point or (ii) a write-down mechanism which allocates losses to the instrument at a pre-
specified trigger point. The write-down will have the following effects:

a. Reduce the claim of the instrument in liquidation;
b. Reduce the amount re-paid when a call is exercised; and
c. Partially or fully reduce coupon/dividend payments on the instrument.

Neither the bank nor a related party over which the bank exercises control or significant
influence(as defined under relevant Nepal Financial Reporting Standards) can have purchased
the instrument, nor can the bank directly or indirectly have funded the purchase of the
instrument

The instrument cannot have any features that hinder recapitalization, such as provisions that
require the issuer to compensate investors if a new instrument is issued at a lower price

qo0



during a specified time frame.

Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital

The Supplementary (Tier 2) Capital includes reserves whichhave been passed through the profit
and loss account and all other capital instruments eligible and acceptable for capital purposes.
Elements of the Tier 2 capital will be reckoned as capital funds up to a maximum of 100 percent
of Tier 1 capital arrived at, after making regulatory adjustments/deductions. In case, where the
Tier 1 capital of a bank is negative, the Tier 2 capital for regulatory purposes shall be considered
as zero and hence the capital fund, in such cases, shall be equal to the core capital.

The Tier 2 Capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
)

Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) /
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative Preference
Shares (RCPS)] issued by the bank with the maturity of 5 years or above;

Subordinated term debt fully paid up with a maturity of 5 years or above; unsecured and
subordinated to the claim of other creditors, free of restrictive clauses and not redeemable before
maturity. Since, subordinated term debt is not normally available to participate in the losses; the
amount eligible for inclusion in the capital adequacy calculations is limited to 50% of core capital.
Moreover, to reflect the diminishing value of these instruments as a continuing source of strength, a
cumulative discount (amortization) factor of 20% per annum shall be applied for capital adequacy
computations, during the last 5 years to maturity.

Hybrid capital instruments combine certain characteristics of debt and certain characteristics of
equity. Each such instrument has a particular feature, which can be considered to affect its quality as
capital. Where these instruments have close similarities to equity, in particular when they are able to
support losses on an ongoing basis without triggering liquidation, they may be included in Tier 2
capital with approval from Nepal Rastra Bank.

Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of instruments included in Tier 2 capital;

General loan loss provision limited to a maximum of 1.25% of total Credit Risk Weighted
Exposures. General loan loss provision refers to provisions or loan- loss reserves held against future,
presently unidentified losses are freely available to meet losses which subsequently materialize and
therefore the provisions created in respect of Performing Loans only qualify for inclusion in Tier 2
Capital. Provisions ascribed to identify deterioration of particular assets or loan liabilities, whether
individual or grouped, should be excluded. Accordingly, for instances provision on
rescheduled/restructured and classified loans, both an individual account and portfolio level shall be
excluded. The additional loan loss provisions created in respect of Personal Guarantee loans, third
party collateral loans and loans in excess of Single Obligor Limits are specific provisions and hence
cannot be included under this category. Such provisions however can be deducted from the gross
exposures while calculating risk weighted exposures for credit risk.

However, provisions created in excess of the regulatory requirements or provisions which are not
attributable to identifiable losses in any specific loans shall be allowed to be included in the General
Loan Loss Provision.

Exchange equalization reserves created by banks as a cushion for unexpected losses arising out of
adverse movements in foreign currencies.

Investment adjustment reserves created as a cushion for adverse price movements in banks’
investments falling under “Available for Sale” category.

Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not be fully
available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market values and tax
consequences of revaluation. Therefore, revaluation reserves will be eligible up to 50% for treatment
as Tier 2 capital and limited to a maximum of 2% of total Tier 2 capital subject to the condition that
the reasonableness of the revalued amount is duly certified by the internal auditor of the bank.

Any other type of instruments notified by NRB from time to time for inclusion in Tier 2 capital

Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Tier 2 capital.
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Criteria for Instruments issued by the bank for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital:

Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) /
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative Preference
Shares (RCPS)], Subordinated Term Debt and Hybrid Capital Instrument issued by the bank must
meet the following criteria to be included in Tier 2 Capital:

1. The instruments should be issued by the Bank (i.e. not by any ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’ etc. set up by
the bank for this purpose) and fully paid up.

2. These instruments could be either perpetual or dated with a maturity period of minimum 5 years or
more and there should be no step-ups or other incentives to redeem. The perpetual instruments shall be
cumulative. The dated instruments could be cumulative or non-cumulative.

3. The dated instruments (both cumulative and non-cumulative) shall be subjected to a progressive
discount for capital adequacy purposes over the last five years of their tenor, as they approach maturity
as indicated in the table below for being eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital.

Remaining Maturity of Instruments Rate of Discount (%)
Less than one year 100
One year and more but less than two years 80
Two years and more but less than three years 60
Three years and more but less than four years 40
Four years and more but less than five years 20

4. Dividend/Coupon/Rate of Interest

(i)  The dividend/coupon payable to the investors may be either at a fixed rate or at a floating rate
referenced to a market determined rupee interest benchmark rate.

(i)  The instrument cannot have a credit sensitive coupon feature, i.e. a coupon that is reset
periodically based in whole or in part on the banks’ credit standing.
5. The claims of the investors in instruments shall be:
(i)  senior to the claims of investors in instruments eligible for inclusion in Tier 1 capital;
(if)  subordinate to the claims of all depositors and general creditors of the bank; and

(iii)  Neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related entity or other
arrangement that legally or economically enhances the seniority of the claim vis-a-vis bank
creditors.

6. The instruments shall not be issued with “Put Option”. However, the Instruments may be
callable at the initiative of the issuer. Banks may issue instruments with a “Call Option” at a
particular date subject to the following conditions:

(i)  The call option on the instrument is permissible after five years of issuance;

(if)  To exercise a call option a bank must receive prior approval of NRB; and

(iii) A bank must not do anything which creates an expectation that the call will be exercised; and
(iv)  Banks must not exercise a call unless:

(&) The bank replaces the called instrument with capital of the same or better quality and
the replacement of this capital is done on conditions which are sustainable for the
income capacity of the bank; or

(b) The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum capital
requirements after the call option is exercised.

7. Treatment in Bankruptcy / Liquidation
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The investor must have no rights to accelerate the repayment of future scheduled payments
(coupon or principal) except in bankruptcy and liquidation

8. Prohibition on Purchase / Funding of Instruments

Neither the bank nor a related party over which the bank exercises control or significant
influence (as defined under relevant Nepal Financial Reporting Standards) should purchase
the instrument, nor can the bank directly or indirectly should fund the purchase of the
instrument. Banks should also not grant advances against the security of the debt instruments
issued by them.

2.2 LOSS ABSORPTION OF ADDITIONAL TIER 1 INSTRUMENTS (AT1) AT THE PRE-
SPECIFIED TRIGGER

I.  Level of Pre-Specified Trigger and Amount of Equity to be Created by Conversion / Write-down

1. As abank’s capital conservation buffer falls to 0.625% of RWE, it will be subject to 100%
profit retention requirements. One of the important objectives of capital conservation buffer
is to ensure that a bank always operates above minimum Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)
level. Therefore, a pre-specified trigger for loss absorption through conversion / write-
down of the level of Additional Tier 1 (AT1) instruments (PNCPS and PDI) at CET1 of
5.125% of RWEs (minimum CET1 of 4.5% + 25% of capital conservation buffer of 2.5%
i.e. 0.625%) has been fixed.

2. The write-down / conversion must generate CET1 under applicable Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards equal to the written-down / converted amount net of tax, if any.

3. The aggregate amount to be written-down / converted for all such instruments on breaching
the trigger level must be at least the amount needed to immediately return the bank’s CET1
ratio to the trigger level or, if this is not sufficient, the full principal value of the
instruments. Further, the issuer should have full discretion to determine the amount of AT1
instruments to be converted/written-down subject to the amount of conversion/write-down
not exceeding the amount which would be required to bring the total Common Equity ratio
to 7% of RWEs (minimum CET1 of 4.5% + capital conservation buffer of 2.5%).

4. The conversion / write-down of AT1 instruments are primarily intended to replenish the
equity in the event it is depleted by losses. Therefore, banks should not use conversion /
write-down of AT1 instruments to support expansion of balance sheet by incurring further
obligations / booking assets. Accordingly, a bank whose total Common Equity ratio slips
below 7% due to losses and is still above 5.125% i.e. trigger point, should seek to expand
its balance sheet further only by raising fresh equity from its existing shareholders or
market and the internal accruals. However, fresh exposures can be taken to the extent of
amortization of the existing ones. If any expansion in exposures, such as due to drawdown
of sanctioned borrowing limits, is inevitable, this should be compensated within the
shortest possible time by reducing other exposures. The bank should maintain proper
records to facilitate verification of these transactions by its internal auditors, statutory
auditors and supervisors.

Il. Types of Loss Absorption Features

5. Banks may issue AT1 instruments with conversion / write-down features. Further, banks
may issue a single AT1 instrument having both conversion and write-down features with
the option for conversion or write-down to be exercised by the bank. Whichever option is
exercised; it should be exercised across all investors of a particular issue.

6. When a bank breaches the pre-specified trigger of loss absorbency of AT1 and the equity is
replenished either through conversion or write-down, such replenished amount of equity
will be excluded from the common equity tier 1 of the bank for the purpose of determining
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the proportion of earnings to be paid out as dividend in terms of rules laid down for
maintaining capital conservation buffer. However, once the bank has attained a total
Common Equity ratio of 7% without counting the replenished equity capital, that point
onwards, the bank may include the replenished equity capital for all purposes.

7. The conversion / write-down may be allowed more than once in case a bank hits the pre-
specified trigger level subsequent to the first conversion / write-down which was partial.

I11. Treatment of AT1 Instruments in the event of Liquidation, Merger, Acquisitionof the Bank

8. If a bank goes into liquidation before the AT1 instruments have been written-down/
converted, these instruments will absorb losses in accordance with the order of seniority
indicated in the offer document, and legal provisions governing priority of charges. The
order of seniority indicated in the offer document should be in compliance with the
provision of Banking Act.

9. If a bank goes into liquidation after the ATL1 instruments have been written-down, the
holders of these instruments will have no claim on the proceeds of liquidation.

10. If a bank is merged with/acquired by any other bank before the AT1 instruments have been
written-down/converted, these instruments will become part of the corresponding
categories of regulatory capital of the new bank emerging after the merger/acquisition.

11. If a bank is merged with any other bank after the non-equity regulatory capital instruments
have been written-down, these cannot be written-up by the merged entity.

IV. Fixation of Conversion Price, Capping of Number of Shares / Voting Rights

12. Banks may issue AT1 instruments with conversion features either based on price fixed at
the time of issuance or based on the market price prevailing at the time of conversion.

13. There will be a possibility of the debt holders receiving a large number of shares in the
event the share price is very low at the time of conversion. Thus, debt holders will end up
holding the number of shares and attached voting rights exceeding the legally permissible
limits. Banks should therefore, always keep sufficient headroom to accommodate the
additional equity due to conversion without breaching any of the statutory / regulatory
ceilings especially that for maximum shareholdings and maximum voting rights per
investors / group of related investors. In order to achieve this, banks should cap the number
of shares and / or voting rights in accordance with relevant laws and regulations on
Ownership and Governance of banks. Banks should adequately incorporate these features
in the terms and conditions of the instruments in the offer document.

V. Order of Conversion / Write-down of Various Types of AT1 Instruments

14. The instruments should be converted / written-down in order in which they would absorb
losses in a gone concern situation. Banks should indicate in the offer document clearly the
order of conversion / write-down of the instrument in question vis-a-vis other capital
instruments which the bank has already issued or may issue in future.

2.3 DEDUCTIONS FROM CORE (TIER 1) CAPITAL:

Banks shall be required to deduct the following items from the CET 1 capital for capital adequacy
purposes. The claims that have been deducted from CET1 capital shall be exempted from risk weights
for the measurement of credit risk.

a. Book value of goodwill and all other intangible assets.
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Goodwill and all other intangible assets should be deducted from CET1 capital including any
goodwill included in the valuation of significant investments in the capital of banking, financial
and insurance entities which are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation.

The full amount of the intangible assets is to be a deducted net of any associated deferred tax
liabilities which would be extinguished if the intangible assets become impaired or
derecognized under the relevant accounting standards. For this purpose, the definition of
intangible assets would be in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

b.  Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Assets computed as under should be deducted from Common Equity Tier 1

(i) Deferred Tax Assets associated with the accumulated tax losses

(ii) Deferred Tax Assets other than associated with the accumulated tax losses, net of Deferred Tax
Liabilities, if any. Where the Deferred Tax Liabilities is in excess of the Deferred Tax Assets
(excluding Deferred Tax Assets associated with accumulated losses), the excess shall neither be
adjusted against item (i) nor added to CET1 capital.

C. Miscellaneous expenditure to the extent not written off. e.g. VRS expense, preliminary
expense, share issue expense, deferred revenue expenditure, etc.

Investment in Securities of financial institutions licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank?.
All Investments in equity of institutions with financial interest.

Investments in equity of institutions in excess of the prescribed limits.

@ = o o

Investments arising out of underwriting commitments that have not been disposed within a year
from the date of commitment.

h. Reciprocal crossholdings of bank capital artificially designed to inflate the capital position of
the bank.

I.  Cash Flow Hedge Reserve

The amount of the cash flow hedge reserve which relates to the hedging of items that are not fair valued
on the balance sheet (including projected cash flows) should be derecognized in the calculation of CETL1.
This means that positive amounts should be deducted and negative amounts should be added back. This
treatment specifically identifies the element of the cash flow hedge reserve that is to be derecognized for
prudential purposes. It removes the element that gives rise to artificial volatility in Common Equity, as in
this case the reserve only reflects one half of the picture (the fair value of the derivative, but not the
changes in fair value of the hedged future cash flow).

J-  Defined Benefit Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities

Defined benefit pension fund liabilities, as included on the balance sheet, must be fully recognized in the
calculation of Common Equity Tier 1 capital (i.e. Common Equity Tier 1 capital cannot be increased
through derecognizing or unrecognition of these liabilities). For each defined benefit pension fund that is
an asset on the balance sheet, the asset should be deducted in the calculation of Common Equity Tier 1
net of any associated deferred tax liability which would be extinguished if the asset should become
impaired or derecognized under the relevant accounting standards.

K. Any other instruments as stipulated by Nepal Rastra Bank, from time to time.

2 Investment in shares of institutions, where the waiver has been explicitly provided by NRB are subject to risk weight of 100%

and shall not be deducted from Tier 1 capital.
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2.4 CAPITAL FUNDS:

The capital fund is the summation of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital and Tier 1 capital is the total of
common equity Tier 1 (CET1) and additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital. A bank should compute capital
ratios in the following manner:

25

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio =

Tier 1 capital ratio =

Total Capital (CAR?) =

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Total Risk Weighted Exposure*
Eligible Tier 1 Capital

Total Risk Weighted Exposure
Eligible Total Capital

Total Risk Weighted Exposure

*Total Risk Weighted Exposure = RWE* on Credit Risk +RWE on Market Risk+ RWE on
Operational Risk + Supervisory Adjustment under Pillar 11

¥RWE= Risk weighted Exposure
# Capital Adequacy Ratio

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Banks shall maintain a minimum total capital (MTC) of 8.5% of total risk weighted assets
(RWAS) i.e. capital to risk weighted assets (CRAR).

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital must be at least 4.5% of risk-weighted assets
(RWAS) i.e. for credit risk + market risk + operational risk on an ongoing basis.

Tier 1 capital must be at least 6% of RWAs on an ongoing basis. Thus, within the
minimum Tier 1 capital, Additional Tier 1 capital can be admitted maximum at 1.5% of
RWA:s.

Total Capital (Tier 1 Capital plus Tier 2 Capital) must be at least 8.5% of RWASs on an
ongoing basis. The sum total of the different components of the Tier 2 capitals will be
limited to the sum total of the various components of the Tier 1 capital net of deductions as
specified in paragraph2.3. In case the Tier 1 capital is negative, Tier 2 capital shall be
considered to be "Nil" for regulatory capital adequacy purposes and hence, in such a
situation, the capital fund shall be equal to the Tier 1 capital.

If a bank has complied with the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 and Tier 1 capital ratios,
then the excess Additional Tier 1 capital can be admitted for compliance with the minimum
CRAR of 8.5% of RWAs.

In addition to the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital of 4.5% of RWAs, banks are
also required to maintain a capital conservation buffer (CCB) of 2.5% of RWAs in the form
of Common Equity Tier 1 capital.

For the purpose of all prudential exposure limits linked to capital funds, the ‘capital funds’
will exclude the applicable capital conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer as
and when activated, but include Additional Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital. It may be
noted that the term ‘Common Equity Tier 1 capital’ does not include capital conservation
buffer and countercyclical capital buffer.

CAPITAL CONSERVATION BUFFER
A. Objective

1. The capital conservation buffer (CCB) is designed to ensure that banks build up capital buffers during normal

times (i.e. outside periods of stress) which can be drawn down as losses are incurred during a stressed
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period. The requirement is based on simple capital conservation rules designed to avoid breaches of
minimum capital requirements.

2.0Outside the period of stress, banks should hold buffers of capital above the regulatory minimum. When
buffers have been drawn down, one way banks should look to rebuild them is through reducing
discretionary distributions of earnings. Banks may also choose to raise new capital from the market as an
alternative to conserving internally generated capital. However, if a bank decides to make payments in
excess of the constraints imposed as explained above, the bank, with the prior approval of NRB, would
have to use the option of raising capital from the market equal to the amount above the constraint which it
wishes to distribute.

3. The capital conservation buffer can be drawn down only when a bank faces a systemic or idiosyncratic stress.
A bank should not choose in normal times to operate in the buffer range simply to compete with other
banks and win market share. This aspect would be specifically looked into by NRB during the Supervisory
Review and Evaluation Process. If, at any time, a bank is found to have allowed its capital conservation
buffer to fall in normal times, particularly by increasing its risk weighted assets without a commensurate
increase in the Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio (although adhering to the restrictions on distributions), this
would be viewed seriously. In addition, such a bank will be required to bring the buffer to the desired level
within a time limit prescribed by NRB. The banks which draw down their capital conservation buffer
during a stressed period should also have a definite plan to replenish the buffer as part of its Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process and strive to bring the buffer to the desired level within a time limit
agreed to with NRB during the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process.

4.The framework of capital conservation buffer will strengthen the ability of banks to withstand adverse
economic environment conditions, will help increase banking sector resilience both going into a downturn,
and provide the mechanism for rebuilding capital during the early stages of economic recovery. Thus, by
retaining a greater proportion of earnings during a downturn, banks will be able to help ensure that capital
remains available to support the ongoing business operations / lending activities during the period of stress.
Therefore, this framework is expected to help reduce pro-cyclicality.

B. The Framework

5.Banks are required to maintain a capital conservation buffer of 2.5%, comprised of Common Equity Tier 1
capital, above the regulatory minimum capital requirement of 8.50%. Banks should not distribute capital
(i.e. pay dividends or bonuses in any form) in case capital level falls within this range. However, they will
be able to conduct business as normal when their capital levels fall into the conservation range as they
experience losses. Therefore, the constraints imposed are related to the distributions only and are not
related to the operations of banks. The distribution constraints imposed on banks when their capital levels
fall into the range increase as the banks’ capital levels approach the minimum requirements. The Table
below shows the minimum capital conservation ratios a bank must meet at various levels of the Common
Equity Tier 1 capital ratios.

Minimum capital conservation standards for individual bank

Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio Minimum Capital Conservation Ratios
(expressed as a percentage of earnings)

4.5% - 5.125% 100%

>5.125% - 5.75% 80%

>5.75% - 6.375% 60%

>6.375% - 7.0% 40%

>7.0% 0%

For example, a bank with a Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio in the range of 5.125% to 5.75%
is required to conserve 80% of its earnings in the subsequent financial year (i.e. payout no more
than 20%).
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6. The Common Equity Tier 1 ratio includes amounts used to meet the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital
requirement of 4.5%, but excludes any additional Common Equity Tier 1 needed to meet the 7% Tier 1 and
8.5% Total Capital requirements. For example, a bank maintains Common Equity Tier 1 capital of 8.5%
and has no Additional Tier 1 or Tier 2 capital. Therefore, the bank would meet all minimum capital
requirements, but would have a zero conservation buffer and therefore, the bank would be subjected to
100% constraint on distributions of capital by way of dividends, share-buybacks and discretionary bonuses.

7. The following represents other key aspects of the capital conservation buffer requirements:

(i) Elements subject to the restriction on distributions: Dividends and share buybacks, discretionary
payments on other Tier 1 capital instruments and discretionary bonus payments to staff would
constitute items considered to be distributions. Payments which do not result in depletion of
Common Equity Tier 1 capital, (for example includes certain scrip dividend) are not considered
distributions.

(i) Definition of earnings: Earnings are defined as distributable profits before the deduction of
elements subject to the restriction on distributions mentioned at (i) above. Earnings are calculated
after the tax which would have been reported had none of the distributable items been paid. As such,
any tax impact of making such distributions are reversed out. If a bank does not have positive
earnings and has a Common Equity Tier 1 ratio less than 7%, it should not make positive net
distributions.

(iii) Additional supervisory discretion: Supervisors have the additional discretion to impose time limits
on banks operating within the buffer range on a case-by-case basis. In any case, supervisors should
ensure that the capital plans of banks seek to rebuild buffers over an appropriate timeframe.

26 COUNTERCYCLICAL BUFFER

A. Introduction
1. Losses incurred in the banking sector can be extremely large when a downturn is preceded by a period of

excess credit growth. These losses can destabilize the banking sector and spark a vicious circle, whereby
problems in the financial system can contribute to a downturn in the real economy that then feeds back on
to the banking sector. These interactions highlight the particular importance of the banking sector building
up additional capital defenses in periods where the risks of system-wide stress are growing markedly.

2. The countercyclical buffer aims to ensure that banking sector capital requirementstake account of the macro-
financial environment in which banks operate. The primary aim of the countercyclical capital buffer
requirement is to use a buffer of capital to achieve the broader macro prudential goal of protecting the
banking sector from periods of excess aggregate credit growth that have often been associated with the
build-up of system-wide risk.Protecting the banking sector in this context is not simply ensuring that
individual banks remain solvent through a period of stress, as the minimum capital requirement and capital
conservation buffer are together designed to fulfill this objective. Rather, the aim is to ensure that the
banking sector in aggregate has the capital on hand to help maintain the flow of credit in the economy
without its solvency being questioned, when the broader financial system experiences stress after a period
of excess credit growth. Therefore, excess aggregate credit growth is judged to be associated witha build-
up of system-wide risk to ensure the banking system has a buffer of capital to protectit against future
potential losses.

3. The countercyclical buffer regime consists of the following elements:

a) Nepal Rastra Bank will monitor credit growth and other indicators that may signal a buildup of
system-wide risk and make assessments of whether credit growth is excessive and isleading to the
buildup of system-wide risk. Based on this assessment Nepal Rastra Bank will put in place a
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countercyclical buffer requirement when circumstances warrant. Thisrequirement will be released
when system-wide risk crystallises or dissipates.

b) The countercyclical buffer requirement to which a bank is subject to extend the size of the capital
conservation buffer. Banks will be subject to restrictions on distributions if they do not meet the
requirement.

B. Countercyclical buffer requirements

Nepal Rastra Bank has adopted the Credit to GDP ratio, macro-economic variable, as guide for
reference point for taking buffer decisions. Nepal Rastra Bank will monitor Credit to GDP ratio
at least annually and calculate Credit to GDP gap, i.e. the gap between Credit to GDP ratio and its
Trend. The intensity of Credit to GDP gap shall be the indication of the extent of thebuildup of
system-wide risk i.e. If the credit-to-GDP ratio is significantly above its trend (i.e. there is a large
positive gap) then this is an indication that credit may have grown to excessive levels relative to
GDP.The Credit to GDP gap shall be calculated as follows:

Creditto GDP Gap(t) = Credit to GDP Ratio(t) — Trend(t)

The countercyclical buffer requirement will vary between 0 and 2.5% of risk weighted assets,
depending on the extent of thebuild- up of system-wide risk. The credit to GDP gap of 5 points
shall be taken as cut off points of excess credit growth level. The increase by additional 1 point of
credit to GDP gap in excess of 5 point shall require buffer requirement of 0.5% i.e. each increase
in every one points in credit to GDP gap in excess of 5 points shall require to raise the buffer
requirement by each 0.5%. For this purpose, trend is defined as average of credit to GDP ratio of
past 10 years. The following table shows the countercyclical buffer requirement in case of excess
credit growth:

Countercyclical Buffer Requirement

Credit to GDP Gap Buffer Requirement in Terms of CET 1
Up to 5 points 0%

5 to 6 points 0.5%

6 to 7 points 1.0%

7 to 8 points 1.5%

8 to 9 points 2.0%

above 9 points 2.5%

The banks are required to raise level of the buffer by up to 12 months, but shall be allowed to
decrease the level of the buffer with immediate effect. The bank, not being able to maintain the
countercyclical buffer requirement, shall not be allowed to distribute its earnings.

2.7 LEVERAGE RATIO
A. Rationale and Objective

One of the underlying features of the crisis was the build-up of excessive on-and off-balance
sheet leverage in the banking system. In many cases, banks built up excessive leverage while still
showing strong risk based capital ratios. During the most severe part of the crisis, the banking
sector was forced by the market to reduce its leverage in a manner that amplified downward
pressure on asset prices, further exacerbating the positive feedback loop between losses, declines
in bank capital, and contraction in credit availability. Therefore, under Basel Ill, a simple,
transparent, non-risk based leverage ratio has been introduced. The leverage ratio is calibrated to
act as a credible supplementary measure to the risk based capital requirements. The leverage ratio
is intended to achieve the following objectives:
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a)

b)

constrain the build-up of leverage in the banking sector, helping avoid destabilising deleveraging
processes which can damage the broader financial system and the economy; and

reinforce the risk based requirements with a simple, non-risk based “backstop” measure.

Definition and Calculation of the Leverage Ratio

a)

b)

Banks are required to maintain minimum leverage ratio of 3 percent of their total assets.
The leverage ratio shall be maintained on a quarterly basis, which is calculated as:

Leverage Ratio = Capital Measure
Exposure Measure

Capital Measure

a) The capital measure for the leverage ratio should be based on the definition of Tier 1 capital as set
out in paragraph 2.1

b) Items that are deducted completely from capital do not contribute to leverage, and should therefore
also be deducted from the measure of exposure.

Exposure Measure

The exposure measure for the leverage ratio should generally follow the accounting measure
of exposure. In order to measure the exposure consistently with financial accounts, the
following should be applied:

a) on-balance sheet, non-derivative exposures will be net of specific provisions and valuation
adjustments (e.g. prudent valuation adjustments for Available for Sale (AFS) and Held For
Trading (HFT) positions, credit valuation adjustments);

b)physical or financial collateral, guarantees or credit risk mitigation purchased is not allowed to
reduce on-balance sheet exposures; and

¢) netting of loans and deposits is not allowed.

Component of Exposure Measure

(i)

(ii)

On-Balance Sheet Items

Banks should include all items of assets reported in their accounting balance sheet for the
purposes of calculation of the leverage ratio. In addition, the exposure measure should
include the following treatments for Securities Financing Transactions (e.g. repo and reverse
repo agreements, CBLO) and derivatives.

Repurchase agreements and securities finance

Securities Financing Transactions (SFTs) are a form of secured funding and therefore, an
important source of balance sheet leverage that should be included in the leverage ratio.
Therefore, banks should calculate SFT for the purposes of the leverage ratio by applying:

(a) the accounting measure of exposure; and

(b) without netting various long and short positions with the same counterparty.

(iii) Derivatives

Derivatives create two types of exposure: an “on-balance sheet” present value reflecting the
fair value of the contract (often zero at outset but subsequently positive or negative depending
on the performance of the contract), and a notional economic exposure representing the
underlying economic interest of the contract. Banks should calculate exposure in respect of
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derivatives, including where a bank sells protection using a credit derivative, for the purposes
of the leverage ratio by applying:

(a) the accounting measure of exposure (positive Marked to Market (MTM) value) plus an add-on for
Potential Future Exposure (PFE) calculated according to the Current Exposure Method; and

(b) without netting the MTM values and PFEs in respect of various long and short positions with the
same counterparty.

(iv) Other Off-Balance Sheet Items

Banks should calculate the off balance sheet items. These includecommitments (including
liquidity facilities), unconditionally cancellable commitments, directcredit substitutes,
acceptances, standby letters of credit, trade letters of credit, failedtransactions and unsettled
securities. The off balance sheet items are source of the potentially significant leverage.
Therefore, bank should calculate the above off balance sheet items for the purposes of the
leverage ratio by applying a uniform 100% credit conversion factor (CCF).

3. Credit Risk — The Standardized Approach

1. As per the standards developed by the BCBS Committee, NRB permits banks a choice between two broad
methodologies for calculating their capital requirements for credit risk. One alternative, the Standardized
Approach, will be to measure credit risk in a standardized manner, supported by external credit
assessments.®

2. The other alternative, the Internal Ratings-based Approach, which is subject to the explicit approval of the
bank’s supervisor, would allow banks to use their internal rating systems for credit risk.

3. NRB prescribes the standardized approach for credit risk however, the banks could adopt the advance
approach, the Internal Rating-based Approach but they are not allowed to revert to a simpler approach
without approval of NRB.

4. The credit equivalent amount of Securities Financing Transactions (SFT)* and OTC derivatives that
expose a bank to counterparty credit risk®is not included in this section, which will be updated in next
revision. In determining the risk weights in the standardized approach, banks may use assessments by
external credit assessment institutions or external credit rating agencies recognized as eligible for capital
purposes by NRB in accordance with the criteria defined in part B below. Exposures should be risk-
weighted net of specific provisions.

In order to be consistent with the Basel framework, the credit risk for the regulatory capital purpose shall be
computed by segregating the exposure in the following 9 categoriesG-

a)  Claims on government & central bank

b)  Claims on other official entities

3The banks follow the methodology used by one institution, ICRA Nepal’s, the use of ICRA Nepal’s credit ratings is an example only; those of
some other external credit assessment institutions could equally well be used. The ratings used throughout this document, therefore, do not express
any preferences or determinations on external assessment institutions by the NRB.

4Securities Financing Transactions (SFT) are transactions such as repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, security
lending and borrowing, and margin lending transactions, where the value of the transactions depends on the market valuations and
the transactions are often subject to margin agreements.

5The counterparty credit risk is defined as the risk that the counterparty to a transaction could default before the final settlement of
the transaction’s cash flows. An economic loss would occur if the transactions or portfolio of transactions with the counterparty has
a positive economic value at the time of default. Unlike a firm’s exposure to credit risk through a loan, where the exposure to credit
risk is unilateral and only the lending bank faces the risk of loss, the counterparty credit risk creates a bilateral risk of loss: the
market value of the transaction can be positive or negative to either counterparty to the transaction. The market value is uncertain
and can vary over time with the movement of underlying market factors.

5Two more categories i.e. claims on regulatory retail portfolio and claims secured by residential properties have been withdrawn.
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¢)  Claims on banks
d)  Claims on corporate & securities firms
e)  Claims secured by commercial real state
f) Past due claims
g)  Higher-risk categories
h)  Other assets
i) Off balance sheet items
A. Individual claims
a. Claims on sovereigns

1. Claims on sovereigns and their central banks will be risk weighted as follows:

Credit AAA to A+ to A- BBB+ to BB+ Below B- Unrated
Assessment | BBB- to B-
Risk Weight | 0% 20% 50% 100% 150% 100%

2. All claims on Government of Nepal and Nepal Rastra Bank could be risk weighed at 0 %.
3. Claims on the Bank for International Settlements, the International Monetary Fund, the European Central Bank,

and European Community may receive a 0% risk weight.

al. Claims on government public sector entities (PSEs)

4. Claims on domestic and foreign public sector entities will be risk-weighted as follows:

Credit AAA to A+to A- | BBB+to BB+ Below B- | Unrated
Assessment AA- BBB- to B-
Risk Weight 20% 50% 50% 100% 150% 100%

5. Furthermore, claims on domestic PSEs can be assigned risk weight of 0%, if strict lending rules apply to these
entities and a declaration of bankruptcy is not possible because of their special public status and government or

sovereign guarantee in case of default.

b. Claims on other official entities i.e. multilateral development banks (MDBs)

6. Multilateral Development Banks (MDBs) will be eligible for a 0% risk weight.
7. The standard risk weight for claims on Multilateral Development Banks except above will be assigned risk
weights as per claims on foreign public sector entities.

c. Claims on banks

"World Bank Group comprised, of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) and the International
Finance Corporation (IFC), Asian Development Bank (ADB), Asian Infrastructure Investment Bank (AlIB), African Development
Bank (AfDB), European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), Inter-American Development Bank (IADB),
European Investment Bank (EIB), European Investment Fund (EIF), Nordic Investment Bank (NIB), Caribbean Development Bank
(CDB), Islamic Development Bank (IDB), and Council of Europe Development Bank (CEDB).
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All claims, irrespective of currency and sovereign ownership, excluding investment in equity shares and other
instruments eligible for capital funds, on domestically incorporated banks and financial institutions that have
complied Capital Adequacy Requirements will be risk weighed at 20% while for the rest, it will be 100%.Banks
may use the publicly available information of the immediately preceding quarter of the respective banks and
financial institutions to acquire their status on capital adequacy.

Claims on foreign banks shall be risk weighed as per credit assessment subject to the floor of 20%. The primary
basis for applying the credit assessment shall be the country of incorporation of the bank.

Credit AAA to A+ to A- BBB+ to BB+ Below B- Unrated
Assessment AA- BBB- to B-

Risk Weight 20% 50% 50% 100% 150% 100%
Risk  Weight | 20% 20% 20% 50% 150% 100%
for short- term

claims®

d. Claims on corporate and securities firms

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Claims on securities firms may be treated as claims on banks provided these firms are subject to supervisory and
regulatory arrangements comparable to those under this Framework (including, in particular, risk-based capital
requirements).® Otherwise such claims would follow the rules for claims on corporate.

The table provided below illustrates the risk weighting of rated corporate claims, including claims in insurance
companies. The standard risk weight for unrated claims on corporate will be 100%. No claim on an unrated
corporate may be given a risk weight preferential to that assigned to its sovereign of incorporation.

Credit Assessment AAA toAA- A+ to A- BBB+ toBB- Below BB- | Unrated

Risk Weight 20% 50% 100% 150% 100%

As part of the supervisory review process, supervisor may also consider whether the credit quality of corporate
claims held by individual banks should warrant a standard risk weight higher than 150%.

Supervisor may increase the standard risk weight for unrated claims where they judge that a higher risk weight is
warranted by the overall default experience in banking system. As part of the supervisory review process,
supervisors may also consider whether the credit quality of corporate claims held by individual banks should
warrant a standard risk weight higher than 100%.

Banks are permitted to risk weight all corporate claims at 100% without regard to external ratings as defined in
paragraph 11. Supervisor should be ensured that banks apply a single consistent approach, i.e. either to use
ratings wherever available or not at all. To prevent “cherry-picking” of external ratings, banks should obtain
supervisory approval before utilising this option to risk weight all corporate claims at 100%.

e. Claims secured by commercial real estate

15.

In view of the experience in numerous countries that commercial property lending has been a recurring cause of
troubled assets in the banking industry. Over the past few decades, NRB hold to the view that claims secured by
mortgages on commercial real estate do not, in principle, justify other than a 100% weighting of the loans
secured.

8Short-term claims are defined as having an original maturity of three months or less. But claims with (contractual) original
maturity under the 3 months which are expected to be or practiced of rolled over (i.e. where the effective maturity is longer than 3
months) do not qualify for this preferential treatment for capital adequacy purposes.

That is, capital requirements that are comparable to those applied to banks in this Framework. Implicit in the meaning of the word
“comparable” is that the securities firm (but not necessarily its parent) is subject to consolidated regulation and supervision with
respect to any downstream affiliates.
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16. Commercial real estate hereby refers to mortgage of office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space,
hotels, land acquisition, development and construction etc.

f. Past due loans

17. The unsecured portion of any loan, which currently is or has been past due for more than 90 days at any point of
time during last two years, net of specific provisions, will be risk-weighted as follows:
e  150% risk weight when specific provisions are less than 50% of the outstanding amount of the loan;
e 100% risk weight when specific provisions are no less than 50% of the outstanding amount of the loan;

18. For the purpose of defining the secured portion of the past due loan, eligible collateral and guarantees will be the
same as for credit risk mitigation purposes.

g. Higher-risk categories

19. The following claims will be risk weighted at 150% or higher:

Claims on sovereigns, PSEs, banks, and securities firms rated below B-.

Claims on corporates rated below BB-.

Past due loans except as set out in paragraph 17.

Investments in the equity and other capital instruments of institutions, which are not listed in the stock

exchange and have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital, shall be risk weighed at 150% net of provisions.

e Investments in the equity and other capital instruments of institutions, which are listed in the stock exchange
and have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital, shall be risk weighed at 100% net of provisions.

e Investments in mutual fund shall be risk weighted at 100%.

o Reflecting the higher risks associated with some other assets, such as venture capital and private equity
investments shall be applied 150% risk weight.

h. Other assets

20. The standard risk weight for all other assets will be 100%. Investments in equity or regulatory capital instruments
issued by banks or securities firms will be risk weighted at 100%, unless deducted from the capital base
according to point 2 of this framework.

21. Interest receivable/claim on government securities will be risk-weighted at 0%.

22. Cash items in the process of collection can be risk-weighted at 20%.

i. Off-balance sheet items??

23. Off-balance sheet items will be converted into equivalent risk weight as follows:

Off Balance Sheet Exposure Risk
Weight
Any commitments those are unconditionally cancelable at any time by the bank 0%

without prior notice, or that effectively provide for automatic cancellation due to
deterioration in a borrower’s creditworthiness (for example bills under collection)

Forward exchange contracts. 10%

Short Term Trade-related contingencies 20%

Contingent liabilities arising from trade-related obligations, which are secured against
an underlying shipment of goods for both issuing and confirming bank and are short
term in nature. This includes documentary letters of credit, shipping guarantees issued
and any other trade-related contingencies with an original maturity up to six months.

Undertaking to provide a commitment on an off-balance sheet items 20%

Unsettled! securities and foreign exchange transactions between bank to bank and 20%
between bank and customer

10Banks can use credit conversion factor as per standardized approach for assigning risk weights. In this document,
uniform credit conversion factors (CCF) as 100% is recommended.
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Long Term Trade-related contingencies 50%

Contingent liabilities arising from trade-related obligations, which are secured against
an underlying shipment of goods for both issuing and confirming bank and are long
term in nature. This includes documentary letters of credit, shipping guarantees issued
and any other trade-related contingencies with an original maturity of over six months.
In case the usance letter of credit is discounted, the risk weight shall be calculated on
net basis.

Performance-related contingencies 50%

Contingent liabilities, which involve an irrevocable obligation to pay a third party in
the event that counterparty fails to fulfill or perform a contractual non-monetary
obligation, such as delivery of goods by a specified date etc. This includes issue of
performance bonds, bid bonds, warranties, indemnities, underwriting commitments and
standby letters of credit in relation to a non-monetary obligation of counterparty under
a particular transaction.

Long term irrevocable Credit Commitments 50%

Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of more than 1
year. This shall include all unutilized limits in respect of revolving working capital
loans e.g. overdraft, cash credit, working capital loan etc. except for trade finance
exposures.

Short term irrevocable Credit Commitments 20%

Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of upto 1 year.
This shall include all unutilized limits in respect of revolving working capital loans e.g.
overdraft, cash credit, working capital loan etc. except for trade finance exposures.

Repurchase agreements, securities lending, securities borrowing, reverse repurchase 100%
agreements and equivalent transactions

This includes sale and repurchase agreements and asset sales with recourse, where the
credit risk remains with the purchasing bank.

Direct credit substitutes 100%

Any irrevocable off-balance sheet obligations which carry the same credit risk as a
direct extension of credit, such as an undertaking to make a payment to a third party in
the event that a counterparty fails to meet a financial obligation or an undertaking to a
counterparty to acquire a potential claim on another party in the event of default by that
party, constitutes a direct credit substitute. This includes potential credit exposures
arising from the issue of financial guarantees and credit derivatives, confirmation of
letters of credit(acceptances and endorsements), issue of standby letters of credit
serving as financial guarantees for loans, securities and any other financial liabilities,
and bills endorsed under bill endorsement lines (but which are not accepted by, or have
the prior endorsement of, another bank).

Unpaid portion of partly paid shares and securities 100%
Unpaid Guarantee Claim 200%
Other Contingent Liabilities 100%

B. External credit assessment

11 An unsettled transaction is one where delivery of the instrument is due to take place against receipt of cash, but
which remain unsettled five business days after the due settlement date.
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1. The recognition process

24,

External credit assessment institution (ECAI) should meet the criteria listed in the paragraph below. The
assessments of ECAIs may be recognized on a limited basis, e.g. by type of claims or by jurisdiction. The
supervisory process for recognizing ECAIs should be made public to avoid unnecessary barriers to entry.

2. Eligibility criteria

25.

An ECAI must satisfy each of the following six criteria.

Obijectivity: The methodology for assigning credit assessments must be rigorous, systematic, and subject to
some form of validation based on historical experience. Moreover, assessments must be subject to ongoing
review and responsive to changes in financial condition. Before being recognized by supervisors, an assessment
methodology for each market segment, including rigorous back testing, must have been established for at least
one year and preferably three years.

Independence: An ECAI should be independent and should not be subject to political or economic pressures that
may influence the rating. The assessment will not be valid if there exist any kind of conflict of interest in the
assessment process.

International access/Transparency: The individual assessments should be available to both domestic and
foreign institutions with legitimate interests and at equivalent terms. In addition, the general methodology used
by the ECAI should be publicly available.

Disclosure: An ECAI should disclose the following information: its assessment methodologies, including the
definition of default, the time horizon, and the meaning of each rating; the actual default rates experienced in
each assessment category; and the transitions of the assessments, e.g. the likelihood of AA ratings becoming A
over time.

Resources: An ECAI should have sufficient resources to carry out high quality credit assessments. These
resources should allow for substantial ongoing contact with senior and operational levels within the entities
assessed in order to add value to the credit assessments. Such assessments should be based on methodologies
combining qualitative and quantitative approaches.

Credibility: To some extent, credibility is derived from the criteria above. In addition, the reliance on an ECAI’s
external credit assessments by independent parties (investors, insurers, trading partners) is evidence of the
credibility of the assessments of an ECAI. The credibility of an ECAI is also underpinned by the existence of
internal procedures to prevent the misuse of confidential information.

C. Implementation considerations

1. The mapping process

26.

217.

28.

29.

Supervisors will be responsible for assigning eligible ECAIs’ assessments to the risk weights available under the
standardized risk weighting framework, i.e. deciding which assessment categories correspond to which risk
weights. The mapping process should be objective and should result in a risk weight assignment consistent with
that of the level of credit risk reflected in the tables above. It should cover the full spectrum of risk weights.
When conducting such a mapping process, factors that supervisors should assess include, among others, the size
and scope of the pool of issuers that each ECAI covers, the range and meaning of the assessments that it assigns,
and the definition of default used by the ECAI. In order to promote a more consistent mapping of assessments
into the available risk weights and help supervisors in conducting such a process, Annex 2 provides guidance as
to how such a mapping process may be conducted.

Banks must use the chosen ECAIs and their ratings consistently for each type of claim, for both risk weighting
and risk management purposes. Banks will not be allowed to “cherry-pick” the assessments provided by different
ECAIs.

Banks must disclose ECAISs that they use for the risk weighting of their assets by type of claims, the risk weights
associated with the particular rating grades as determined by supervisors through the mapping process as well as
the aggregated risk-weighted assets for each risk weight based on the assessments of each eligible ECAL.

2. Multiple assessments

30.

31.

32.

If there is only one assessment by an ECAI chosen by a bank for a particular claim, that assessment should be
used to determine the risk weight of the claim.

If there are two assessments by ECAIs chosen by a bank which map into different risk weights, the higher risk
weight will be applied.

If there are three or more assessments with different risk weights, the assessments corresponding to the two
lowest risk weights should be referred to and the higher of those two risk weights will be applied.
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3. Issuer versus issues assessment

33. Where a bank invests in a particular issue that has an issue-specific assessment, the risk weight of the claim will
be based on this assessment. Where the bank’s claim is not an investment in a specific assessed issue, the
following general principles apply.

e In circumstances where the borrower has a specific assessment for an issued debt — but the bank’s claim is
not an investment in this particular debt — a high quality credit assessment (one which maps into a risk
weight lower than that which applies to an unrated claim) on that specific debt may only be applied to the
bank’s unassessed claim if this claim ranks pari passu or senior to the claim with an assessment in all
respects. If not, the credit assessment cannot be used and the unassessed claim will receive the risk weight for
unrated claims.

e In circumstances where the borrower has an issuer assessment, this assessment typically applies to senior
unsecured claims on that issuer. Consequently, only senior claims on that issuer will benefit from a high
quality issuer assessment. Other unassessed claims of a highly assessed issuer will be treated as unrated. If
either the issuer or a single issue has a low quality assessment (mapping into a risk weight equal to or higher
than that which applies to unrated claims), an unassessed claim on the same counterparty will be assigned the
same risk weight as is applicable to the low quality assessment.

34. Whether the bank intends to rely on an issuer- or an issue-specific assessment, the assessment must take into
account and reflect the entire amount of credit risk exposure the bank has with regard to all payments owed to
it.12

35. In order to avoid any double counting of credit enhancement factors, no supervisory recognition of credit risk
mitigation techniques will be taken into account if the credit enhancement is already reflected in the issue
specific rating (see paragraph 49).

4. Domestic currency and foreign currency assessments

36. Where unrated exposures are risk weighted based on the rating of an equivalent exposure to that borrower, the
general rule is that foreign currency ratings would be used for exposures in foreign currency. Domestic currency
ratings, if separate, would only be used to risk weight claims denominated in the domestic currency.

5. Level of application of the assessment

37. External assessments for one entity within a corporate group cannot be used to risk weight other entities within
the same group.

6. Unsolicited ratings®®

38. As a general rule, banks should use solicited ratings from eligible ECAIs. It is allowed banks to use unsolicited
ratings in the same way as solicited ratings. However, there may be the potential for ECAIs to use unsolicited
ratings to put pressure on entities to obtain solicited ratings. Such behaviour, when identified, should cause
supervisors to consider whether to continue recognising such ECAISs as eligible for capital adequacy purposes.

D. The standardised approach — credit risk mitigation
1. Overarching issues
(i) Introduction

39. Banks use a number of techniques to mitigate the credit risks to which they are exposed. For example, exposures
may be collateralised by first priority claims, in whole or in part with cash, cash items or securities, a loan
exposure may be guaranteed by a third party, or a bank may buy a credit derivative to offset various forms of
credit risk. Additionally, banks may agree to net loans owed to them against deposits from the same counterparty.

40. Where these techniques meet the requirements for legal certainty as described in paragraph 46 and 47 below, the
revised approach to CRM allows a wider range of credit risk mitigants to be recognised for regulatory capital
purposes.

(ii) General remarks

L2For example, if a bank is owed both principal and interest, the assessment must fully take into account and reflect the credit risk
associated with repayment of both principal and interest.

13Rating agency's assessment of a borrower's usually based only on publicly available information. The borrower neither involves
nor pays for assessment.
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41. The framework set out in this Section is applicable to the banking book exposures in the standardised approach.

42. No transaction in which CRM techniques are used should receive a higher capital requirement than an otherwise
identical transaction where such techniques are not used.

43. The effects of CRM will not be double counted. Therefore, no additional supervisory recognition of CRM for
regulatory capital purposes will be granted on claims for which an issue-specific rating is used that already
reflects that CRM. As stated in paragraph 34 of the section on the standardised approach, principal-only ratings
will also not be allowed within the framework of CRM.

44, While the use of CRM techniques reduces or transfers credit risk, it simultaneously may increase other risks
(residual risks). Residual risks include legal, operational, liquidity and market risks. Therefore, it is imperative
that banks employ robust procedures and processes to control these risks, including strategy; consideration of the
underlying credit; valuation; policies and procedures; systems; control of roll-off risks; and management of
concentration risk arising from the bank’s use of CRM techniques and its interaction with the bank’s overall
credit risk profile. Where these risks are not adequately controlled, supervisors may impose additional capital
charges or take other supervisory actions as outlined in Pillar 2 i.e. supervisory review process.

45. The Pillar 3 i.e. disclosure requirements must also be observed for banks to obtain capital relief in respect of any
CRM techniques.

(iii) Legal certainty

46. In order for banks to obtain capital relief for any use of CRM techniques, the following minimum standards for
legal documentation must be met.

47. All documentation used in collateralised transactions and for documenting on-balance sheet netting, guarantees
and credit derivatives must be binding on all parties and legally enforceable in all relevant jurisdictions. Banks
must have conducted sufficient legal review to verify this and have a well founded legal basis to reach this
conclusion, and undertake such further review as necessary to ensure continuing enforceability.

2. Overview of Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques
(i) Collateralised transactions

48. A collateralised transaction is one in which:
e banks have a credit exposure or potential credit exposure; and
e that credit exposure or potential credit exposure is hedged in whole or in part by collateral posted by a
counterparty14 or by a third party on behalf of the counterparty.
49. Where banks take eligible financial collateral (e.g. cash or securities, more specifically defined in paragraph 61),
they are allowed to reduce their credit exposure to a counterparty when calculating their capital requirements to
take account of the risk mitigating effect of the collateral.

Overall framework and minimum conditions

50. Banks may opt for either the simple approach, which, similar to the 1988 Accord, substitutes the risk weighting
of the collateral for the risk weighting of the counterparty for the collateralized portion of the exposure (generally
subject to a 20% floor), or for the comprehensive approach, which allows fuller offset of collateral against
exposures, by effectively reducing the exposure amount by the value ascribed to the collateral. Banks may
operate under either, but not both, approaches in the banking book, but only under the comprehensive approach
in the trading book. Partial collateralization is recognized in both approaches. Mismatches in the maturity of the
underlying exposure and the collateral will only be allowed under the comprehensive approach.

51. However, before capital relief will be granted in respect of any form of collateral, the standards set out below in
paragraphs 52 to 55 must be met.

52. In addition to the general requirements for legal certainty set out in paragraphs 46 and 47, the legal mechanism
by which collateral is pledged or transferred must ensure that the bank has the right to liquidate or take legal
possession of it, in a timely manner, in the event of the default, insolvency or bankruptcy (or one or more
otherwise-defined credit events set out in the transaction documentation) of the counterparty (and, where
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applicable, of the custodian holding the collateral). Furthermore, banks must take all steps necessary to fulfill
those requirements under the law applicable to the bank’s interest in the collateral for obtaining andmaintaining
an enforceable security interest, e.g. by registering it with a registrar, or for exercising a right to net or set off in
relation to title transfer collateral.

53. In order for collateral to provide protection, the credit quality of the counterparty and the value of the collateral
must not have a material positive correlation. For example, securities issued by the counterparty — or by any
related group entity — would provide little protection and so would be ineligible.

54. Banks must have clear and robust procedures for the timely liquidation of collateral to ensure that any legal
conditions required for declaring the default of the counterparty and liquidating the collateral are observed, and
that collateral can be liquidated promptly.

55. Where the collateral is held by a custodian, banks must take reasonable steps to ensure that the custodian
segregates the collateral from its own assets.

(if) On-balance sheet netting
56. Banks are not allowed netting arrangements for loans and deposits from on-balance sheet.
(iii) Guarantees and credit derivatives

57. Where guarantees or credit derivatives are direct, explicit, irrevocable and unconditional, and supervisors are
satisfied that banks fulfill certain minimum operational conditions relating to risk management processes they
may allow banks to take account of such credit protection in calculating capital requirements.

58. Detailed operational requirements are given below in paragraphs 62 to 63.

(iv) Maturity mismatch

59. Where the residual maturity of the CRM is less than that of the underlying credit exposure a maturity mismatch
occurs. Where there is a maturity mismatch and the CRM has an original maturity of less than one year, the CRM
is not recognized for capital purposes.

(v) Currency mismatch

60. Where the credit protection is denominated in a currency different from that in which the exposure is
denominated — i.e. there is a currency mismatch — the amount of the exposure deemed to be protected will be
reduced by the application of a haircut. It shall be subject to supervisory haircut of 10%.

3. Collateral
61. The following collateral instruments are eligible for recognition in the simple approach:

(a)Cash (as well as certificates of deposit or comparable instruments issued by the lending bank) on deposit
with the bank which is incurring the counterparty exposure.>6

(b) Gold.
(c) Debt securities rated by a recognized external credit assessment institution where these are either:
e at least BB- when issued by sovereigns or PSEs that are treated as sovereigns by the Nepal rastra bank; or
e at least BBB- when issued by other entities (including banks and securities firms).
(d) Debt securities not rated by a recognized external credit assessment institution where these are:
e issued by a bank; and
e listed on a recognized exchange; and

e classified as senior debt; and

15 Cash funded credit linked notes issued by the bank against exposures in the banking book which fulfill the criteria for credit
derivatives will be treated as cash collateralized transactions.

6\When cash on deposit, certificates of deposit or comparable instruments issued by the lending bank are held as collateral at a
third-party bank in a non-custodial arrangement, if they are openly pledged/assigned to the lending bank and if the
pledge/assignment is unconditional and irrevocable, the exposure amount covered by the collateral (after any necessary haircuts for
currency risk) will receive the risk weight of the third-party bank.
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all rated issues of the same seniority by the issuing bank must be rated at least BBB- by a recognised external
credit assessment institution; and

the bank holding the securities as collateral has no information to suggest that the issue justifies a rating
below BBB-; and

the supervisor is sufficiently confident about the market liquidity of the security.

(e) Equities (including convertible bonds) that are included in a main index.

(f) Undertakings for Collective Investments in Transferable Securities (UCITS) and mutual funds where:

a price for the units is publicly quoted daily; and

the UCITS/mutual fund is limited to investing in the instruments listed in this paragraph.’

4. Guarantees and credit derivatives

(i) Operational requirements

Operational requirements common to guarantees and credit derivatives

62. A guarantee (counter-guarantee) or credit derivative must represent a direct claim on the protection provider and
must be explicitly referenced to specific exposures or a pool of exposures, so that the extent of the cover is
clearly defined and incontrovertible. Other than non-payment by a protection purchaser of money due in respect
of the credit protection contract it must be irrevocable; there must be no clause in the contract that would allow
the protection provider unilaterally to cancel the credit cover or that would increase the effective cost of cover as
a result of deteriorating credit quality in the hedged exposure.18 It must also be unconditional; there should be no
clause in the protection contract outside the direct control of the bank that could prevent the protection provider
from being obliged to pay out in a timely manner in the event that the original counterparty fails to make the
payment(s) due.

Additional operational requirements for guarantees

63.

In addition to the legal certainty requirements in paragraphs 46 and 47 above, in order for a guarantee to be

recognized, the following conditions must be satisfied:

(@) On the qualifying default/non-payment of the counterparty, the bank may in a timely manner
pursue the guarantor for any monies outstanding under the documentation governing the
transaction. The guarantor may make one lump sum payment of all monies under such
documentation to the bank, or the guarantor may assume the future payment obligations of the
counterparty covered by the guarantee. The bank must have the right to receive any such payments
from the guarantor without first having to take legal actions in order to pursue the counterparty for
payment.

(b) The guarantee is an explicitly documented obligation assumed by the guarantor.

(c) Except as noted in the following sentence, the guarantee covers all types of payments the
underlying obligor is expected to make under the documentation governing the transaction, for
example notional amount, margin payments etc. Where a guarantee covers payment of principal
only, interests and other uncovered payments should be treated as an unsecured amount in
accordance with paragraph 68.

17 However, the use or potential use by a UCITS/mutual fund of derivative instruments solely to hedge investments
listed in this paragraph and paragraph 76 shall not prevent units in that UCITS/mutual fund from being eligible
financial collateral.

Note that the irrevocability condition does not require that the credit protection and the exposure be maturity
matched; rather that the maturity agreed ex ante may not be reduced ex post by the protection provider.
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(ii) Range of eligible guarantors (counter-guarantors)/protection providers

64. Credit protection given by the following entities will be recognized:
e sovereign entities, 19 PSEs, banks20 and securities firms with a lower risk weight than the counterparty;

o other entities rated A- or better. This would include credit protection provided by parent, subsidiary and
affiliate companies when they have a lower risk weight than the obligor.

(iii) Risk weights

65. The protected portion is assigned the risk weight of the protection provider. The uncovered portion of the
exposure is assigned the risk weight of the underlying counterparty.

66. Materiality thresholds on payments below which no payment is made in the event of loss are equivalent to
retained first loss positions and must be deducted in full from the capital of the bank purchasing the credit
protection.

Proportional cover

67. Where the amount guaranteed, or against which credit protection is held, is less than the amount of the exposure,
and the secured and unsecured portions are of equal seniority, i.e. the bank and the guarantor share losses on a
pro-rata basis capital relief will be afforded on a proportional basis: i.e. the protected portion of the exposure will
receive the treatment applicable to eligible guarantees/credit derivatives, with the remainder treated as unsecured.

(iv) Sovereign guarantees and counter-guarantees

68. Supervisor may extend this treatment to portions of claims guaranteed by the sovereign (or central bank), where
the guarantee is denominated in the domestic currency and the exposure is funded in that currency. A claim may
be covered by a guarantee that is indirectly counter-guaranteed by a sovereign. Such a claim may be treated as
covered by a sovereign guarantee provided that:

(a) the sovereign counter-guarantee covers all credit risk elements of the claim;

(b) both the original guarantee and the counter-guarantee meet all operational requirements for
guarantees, except that the counter-guarantee need not be direct and explicit to the original claim; and

(c) the supervisor is satisfied that the cover is robust and that no historical evidence suggests that the
coverage of the counter-guarantee is less than effectively equivalent to that of a direct sovereign
guarantee.

5. Other items related to the treatment of CRM techniques
(i) Treatment of pools of CRM techniques

69. In the case where a bank has multiple CRM techniques covering a single exposure (e.g. a bank has both collateral
and guarantee partially covering an exposure), the bank will be required to subdivide the exposure into portions
covered by each type of CRM technique (e.g. portion covered by collateral, portion covered by guarantee) and
the risk-weighted assets of each portion must be calculated separately. When credit protection provided by a
single protection provider has differing maturities, they must be subdivided into separate protection as well.

6. Methodology for using CRM
Step 1: Identify the accounts eligible for capital relief under credit risk mitigation.
Step 2: Assess the value of the exposure and the eligible collateral.

Step 3: Adjust the value of the eligible collateral in respect of the supervisory haircut in terms of currency
mismatch and other eligibility requirements.

19 This includes the Bank for International Settlements, the International Monetary Fund, the European Central Bank and the
European Community, as well as those MDBs referred to in footnote 6.

20 This includes other MDBs.
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Step 4: Compare the adjusted value of the collateral with the outstanding exposure.

Step 5: The value of the eligible CRM is the lower of the adjusted value of the collateral and the

outstanding exposure.

Step 6: Plot the eligible CRM in the appropriate category of credit risk.

The sum total of net amount of eligible CRM as per “Form No.4 Exhibit of claims with eligible credit risk
mitigants” shall be consistent with the “Form No.3 Eligible Credit Risk Mitigants” prescribed in this
framework.

4.2

OPERATIONAL RISK
GENERAL:

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate internal processes, people, and systems,
or from external events. Operational risk itself is not a new concept, and well run banks have been
addressing it in their internal controls and corporate governance structures. Basel Il requires banks to
hold capital against the risk of unexpected loss that could arise from the failure of operational
systems.

The most important types of operational risk involve breakdowns in internal controls and corporate
governance. Such breakdowns can lead to financial losses through error, fraud, or failure to perform
in a timely manner or cause the interests of the bank to be compromised in some other way, for
example, by its dealers, lending officers or other staff exceeding their authority or conducting
business in an unethical or risky manner. Other aspects of operational risk include major failure of
information technology systems or events such as major fires or other disasters.

BASIC INDICATOR APPROACH:

Under the basic indicator approach, banks must hold capital for operational risk equal to the average
over the previous three years of a fixed percentage (denoted alpha) of positive annual gross income.

The capital charge for operational risk may be expressed as follows:

Keia = [Y.(Glinx)]/N

where:
Kgia = capital charge under the Basic Indicator Approach
Gl = annual gross income, where positive, over the previous three years
N = number of the previous three years for which gross income is positive
o = 15 percent.

NRB shall review the capital requirement produced by this approach for general credibility,
especially in relation to a bank's peers and in the event that credibility is lacking, appropriate
supervisory action under Review Process shall be considered.

Figures for the year, in which annual gross income is negative or zero, should be excluded from both
the numerator and denominator while calculating the average. In case where the gross income for all
of the last three years is negative, 5% of total credit and investments net of specific provisions shall
be considered as the capital charge for operational risk. For this purpose, investments shall comprise
of money at call, placements, investment in government securities and other investments irrespective
of currency.

Similarly, in case of new banks which have not completed a year of operation and whose average
gross income cannot be measured reliably, they shall also be required to compute their capital charge
for operational risk vide the same approach as prescribed for banks with negative gross income.
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4.3

4.4

5.2

5.3

These banks may use the gross income approach from the second year onwards. But, based on the
reasonableness of the so computed capital charge for Operation Risk, during the first three years of
operation, review process may require additional proportion of capital charge if deemed necessary.

GROSS INCOME:

Gross income is defined as "net Interest Income™ plus "non interest income". It is intended that this
measure should:

a. be gross of any provisions (e.g. for unpaid interest) and write-offs made during the year;

b.  be gross of operating expenses, exclude reversal during the year in respect of provisions and
write-offs made during the previous year(s);

c.  exclude income/gain recognized from the disposal of items of movable and immovable
property;

d.  exclude realized profits/losses from the sale of securities in the “held to maturity” category;,

e. exclude other extraordinary or irregular items of income and expenditure

Thus, for the purpose of capital adequacy requirements, gross income shall be summation of:

a.  Total operating income as disclosed in Profit and Loss account prepared as per NRB directive
no.4. The total operating income comprises of:

1. Net Interest Income
2. Commission and Discount Income
3. Other Operating Income
4. Exchange Fluctuation Income
b.  Addition/deduction in the Interest Suspense during the period.

Banks shall use the annual audited financials of the last three years for the computation of gross
income under this approach. Hence, the capital requirement for operational risk for a whole financial
year shall remain constant. Until the accounts are finalized for the financial year, banks shall use the
provisional figures for the period, which should be validated by the internal auditor of the bank.

COMPUTATION OF RISK WEIGHT:

Operational risk-weighted assets are determined by multiplying the operational risk capital charge by
9.09 and adding together with the risk weighted exposures for credit risk.

MARKET RISK
DEFINITION OF MARKET RISK:

Market risk is defined as the risk of losses in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions arising
from adverse movements in market prices. The major constituents of market risks are:

a.  The risks pertaining to interest rate related instruments;
b.  Foreign exchange risk (including gold positions) throughout the bank; and
c.  The risks pertaining to investment in equities and commodities.

Banks shall recognize measure, present and disclose the investment instruments as per
the requirement of NFRSs.

NET OPEN POSITION APPROACH:

Out of the various components of market risk, foreign exchange risk is predominating at this time.
The effects of other forms of market risk are minimal. Thus, a net open position approach has been
devised to measure the capital requirement for market risk. As evidenced by its name, this approach
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only addresses the risk of loss arising out of adverse movements in exchange rates. This approach
will be consolidated over time to incorporate other forms of market risks as they start to gain
prominence.

The designated Net Open Position approach requires banks to allocate a fixed proportion of capital in
terms of its net open position. The banks should allocate 5 percentages of their net open positions as
capital charge for market risk.

NET OPEN POSITION:

Net open position is the difference between financial assets and financialliability in a currency. In
other words, it is the uncovered volume of asset or liability which is exposed to changes in the
exchange rates of currencies. For capital adequacy requirements the net open position includes both
net spot positions as well as net forward positions.

For capital adequacy purposes, banks should calculate their net open position in the following
manner:

a.  Calculate the net open position in each of the foreign currencies.
b.  Convert the net open positions in each currency to NPR as per prevalent exchange rates.

c.  Aggregate the converted net open positions of all currencies, without paying attention to long
or short positions.

d.  This aggregate shall be the net open position of the bank.
COMPUTATION OF RISK WEIGHT:

Risk-weighted assets in respect of market risk are determined by multiplying the capital charges by
9.09 and adding together with the risk weighted exposures for credit risk.

REVIEW PROCESS
GENERAL:

The supervisory review process of the framework is intended not only to ensure that banks have
adequate capital to support all the risks in their business, but also to encourage banks to develop and
use better risk management technigques in monitoring and managing their risks. It is the responsibility
of the bank management in developing an internal capital assessment process and setting capital
targets that are commensurate with the bank’s risk profile and control environment beyond the core
minimum requirements.

Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes the significance of the relationship between the amount of capital held
by the bank against its risks and the strength and effectiveness of the bank’s risk management and
internal control processes. However, increased capital should not be viewed as the only option for
addressing increased risks confronting the bank. Other means for addressing risk, such as
strengthening risk management, applying internal limits, strengthening the level of provisions and
reserves, and improving internal controls, must also be considered. Furthermore, capital should not be
regarded as a substitute for addressing fundamentally inadequate control or risk management
processes.

There are three main areas that is particularly suited to treatment under this process: risks considered
under minimum capital requirements which are not fully captured it (e.g. credit concentration risk);
those factors not taken into account by the minimum capital requirements (e.g. business and strategic
risk); and factors external to the bank (e.g. business cycle effects).

In order to achieve the objectives of the supervisory review process, this process has been broadly
divided into three parts:

a. Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

b.  Supervisory Review

¥



6.2

C.

Supervisory Response

INTERNAL CAPITAL ADEQUACY ASSESSMENT PROCESS:

The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which
requires board and senior management oversight, monitoring, reporting and internal control reviews
at regular intervals to ensure the alignment of regulatory capital requirement with the true risk profile
of the bank and thus ensure long-term safety and soundness of the bank. The key components of an
effective ICAAP are discussed below.

a.

Board and senior management oversight

Bank management is responsible for understanding the nature and level of risk being taken by
the bank and how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible for ensuring
that the formality and sophistication of the risk management processes is commensurate with
the complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the foundation for
an effective assessment of the adequacy of a bank’s capital position.

The board of directors of the bank are responsible for setting the bank’s tolerance for risks. The
board should also ensure that management establishes a mechanism for assessing various risks;
develops a system to relate these risks to the bank’s capital level and sets up a method for
monitoring compliance with internal policies. It is equally important that the board instills
strong internal controls and thereby an effective control environment through adoption of
written policies and procedures and ensures that the policies and procedures are effectively
communicated throughout the bank.

The analysis of a bank’s current and future capital requirements in relation to its strategic
objectives is a vital element of the strategic planning process. The strategic plan should clearly
outline the bank’s capital needs, anticipated capital expenditures, desirable capital level, and
external capital sources. Senior management and the board should view capital planning as a
crucial element in being able to achieve its desired strategic objectives.

Sound capital assessment

Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to be
able to make a sound capital assessment the bank should, at minimum, have the following:

e Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the bank identifies, measures, and reports
all material risks;

e A process that relates capital to the level of risk;

e A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the
bank’s strategic focus and business plan; and

e A process of internal control, reviews and audit to ensure the integrity of the overall
management process.

Comprehensive assessment of risks

All material risks faced by the bank should be addressed in the capital assessment process.
Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes that not all risks can be measured precisely. However, bank
should develop a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. In order to make a
comprehensive assessment of risks, the process should, at minimum, address the following
forms of risk.

1.  Credit risk: Banks should have methodologies that enable them to assess the credit risk
involved in exposures to individual borrowers or counterparties as well as at the portfolio
level. The credit review assessment of capital adequacy, at a minimum, should cover risk
rating systems, portfolio analysis/aggregation, large exposures and risk concentrations.
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Internal risk ratings are an important tool in monitoring credit risk. Internal risk ratings
should be adequate to support the identification and measurement of risk from all credit
exposures, and should be integrated into an institution’s overall analysis of credit risk and
capital adequacy. The ratings system should provide detailed ratings for all assets, not
only for problem assets.

Credit concentration risk: Risk concentrations are arguably the single most important
cause of major problems in banks. A risk concentration is any single exposure or group
of exposures with the potential to produce losses large enough (relative to a bank’s
capital, total assets, or overall risk level) to threaten a bank’s health or ability to maintain
its core operations.

Lending being the primary activity of most banks, credit risk concentrations are often the
most material risk concentrations within a bank. However, risk concentrations can arise
in a bank’s assets, liabilities, or off-balance sheet items, through the execution or
processing of transactions (either product or service), or through a combination of
exposures across these broad categories. Credit risk concentrations are based on common
or correlated risk factors, which, in times of stress, have an adverse effect on the
creditworthiness of each of the individual counterparties making up the concentration.

Such credit concentrations are not addressed in the minimum capital requirements for
credit risk. Thus, banks should have in place effective internal policies, systems and
controls to identify, measure, monitor, and control their credit risk concentrations. Banks
should explicitly consider the extent of their credit risk concentrations in their assessment
of capital adequacy under review processes. These policies should cover the different
forms of credit risk concentrations to which a bank may be exposed to. Such
concentrations include but are not limited to:

¢ Significant exposures to an individual counterparty or group of related counterparty.
Banks might also establish an aggregate limit for the management and control of all
of its large exposures as a group;

e Credit exposures to counterparties in the same economic sector or geographic region;

o Credit exposures to counterparties whose financial performance is dependent on the
same activity or commaodity; and

e Indirect credit exposures arising from a bank’s CRM activities (e.g. exposure to a
similar type of collateral or credit protection provided by a single counterparty or
same collateral in cases of multiple banking).

A bank’s framework for managing credit risk concentrations should be clearly
documented and should include a definition of the credit risk concentrations relevant to
the bank and how these concentrations and their corresponding limits are calculated.
Limits should be defined in relation to a bank’s capital, total assets or, where adequate
measures exist, its overall risk level. A bank’s management should conduct periodic
stress tests of its major credit risk concentrations and review the results of those tests to
identify and respond to potential changes in market conditions that could adversely
impact the bank’s performance.

Operational risk: The failure to properly manage operational risk can result in a
misstatement of an institution’s risk/return profile and expose the institution to significant
losses. Gross income, used in the Basic Indicator Approach is only a proxy for the scale
of operational risk exposure of a bank and can in some cases underestimate the need for
capital. Thus, banks should develop a framework for managing operational risk and
evaluate the adequacy of capital as prescribed by this framework. The framework should
cover the bank’s appetite and tolerance for operational risk, as specified through the
policies for managing this risk, including the extent and manner in which operational risk
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is transferred outside the bank. It should also include policies outlining the bank’s
approach to identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling/mitigating the risk.

4. Market risk: The prescribed approach for the computation of capital charge for market
risk is very simple and thus may not be directly aligned with the magnitude of risk.
Likewise, the approach only incorporates risks arising out of adverse movements in
exchange rates while ignoring other forms of risks like interest rate risk and equity risks.
Thus, banks should develop a framework that addresses these various forms of risk and at
the same time perform stress tests to evaluate the adequacy of capital.

The use of internal models by the bank for the measurement of market risk is highly
encouraged. Wherever banks make use of internal models for computation of capital
charge for market risks, the bank management should ensure the adequacy and
completeness of the system regardless of the type and level of complexity of the
measurement system as the quality and reliability of the measurement system is largely
dependent on the quality of the data and various assumptions used in the model.

5.  Liquidity risk: Liquidity is crucial to the ongoing viability of any financial institution.
Capital positions can have a telling effect on institution’s ability to obtain liquidity,
especially in a crisis. Each bank must have adequate systems for measuring, monitoring
and controlling liquidity risk. Banks should evaluate the adequacy of capital given their
own liquidity profile and the liquidity of the markets in which they operate. Banks are
also encouraged to make use of stress testing to determine their liquidity needs and the
adequacy of capital.

6.  Other risks: Although the 'other risks', such as reputational and strategic risk, are not
easily measurable, banks are expected to take these into consideration as well while
deciding on the level of capital.

Monitoring and reporting

The bank should establish an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk exposures and
assessing how the bank’s changing risk profile affects the need for capital. The bank’s senior
management or board of directors should, on a regular basis, receive reports on the bank’s risk
profile and capital needs. These reports should allow senior management to:

o Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels;

o Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital
assessment measurement system;

e Determine that the bank holds sufficient capital against the various risks and is in
compliance with established capital adequacy goals; and

e Assess its future capital requirements based on the bank’s reported risk profile and make
necessary adjustments to the bank’s strategic plan accordingly.

Internal control review

The bank’s internal control structure is essential to a sound capital assessment process.
Effective control of the capital assessment process includes an independent review and, where
appropriate, the involvement of internal or external audits. The bank’s board of directors has a
responsibility to ensure that management establishes a system for assessing the various risks,
develops a system to relate risk to the bank’s capital level, and establishes a method for
monitoring compliance with internal policies. The board should regularly verify whether its
system of internal controls is adequate to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business.

The bank should conduct periodic reviews of its risk management process to ensure its
integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. Key areas that should be reviewed include:
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e Appropriateness of the bank’s capital assessment process given the nature, scope and
complexity of its activities;

o Identification of large exposures and risk concentrations;
e Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the bank’s assessment process;
o Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and

e Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs.

SUPERVISORY REVIEW:

Nepal Rastra Bankshall regularly review the process by which a bank assesses its capital adequacy,
risk positions, resulting capital levels, and quality of capital held by a bank. Supervisors shall also
evaluate the degree to which a bank has in place a sound internal process to assess capital adequacy.
The emphasis of the review should be on the quality of the bank’s risk management and controls and
should not result in supervisors functioning as bank management. The periodic review can involve
any or a combination of:

On-site examinations or inspections;
Off-site review;
Discussions with bank management;

Review of work done by external auditors (provided it is adequately focused on the necessary
capital issues); and

Periodic reporting.

Some of the key areas which will be reviewed during the supervisory review process are discussed
hereunder

a.

Review of adequacy of risk assessment

NRB shall assess the degree to which internal targets and processes incorporate the full range
of material risks faced by the bank. Supervisors shall also review the adequacy of risk measures
used in assessing internal capital adequacy and the extent to which these risk measures are used
operationally in setting limits, evaluating business line performance, and evaluating and
controlling risks more generally. Supervisors shall consider the results of sensitivity analyses
and stress tests conducted by the institution and how these results relate to capital plans.

Assessment of capital adequacy

NRB shall review the bank’s processes to determine that:

e Target levels of capital chosen are comprehensive and relevant to the current operating
environment;

e These levels are properly monitored and reviewed by senior management; and
e The composition of capital is appropriate for the nature and scale of the bank’s business.

NRB shall also consider the extent to which the bank has provided for unexpected events in
setting its capital levels. This analysis should cover a wide range of external conditions and
scenarios, and the sophistication of techniques and stress tests used should be commensurate
with the bank’s activities.

Assessment of the control environment

NRB shallconsider the quality of the bank’s management information reporting and systems,
the manner in which business risks and activities are aggregated, and management’s record in
responding to emerging or changing risks. In all instances, the capital level at an individual
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bank should be determined according to the bank’s risk profile and adequacy of its risk
management process and internal controls. External factors such as business cycle effects and
the macroeconomic environment should also be considered.

Supervisory review of compliance with minimum standards

In order to obtain relief as per this framework banks are required to observe a number of
requirements, including risk management standards and disclosures. In particular, banks will be
required to disclose features of their internal methodologies used in calculating minimum
capital requirements. As part of the supervisory review process, supervisors must ensure that
these conditions are being met on an ongoing basis. Likewise, the supervisors must ensure that
qualifying criteria as specified in the framework are continuously being met as these criteria are
developed as benchmarks aligned with bank management expectations for effective risk
management's and capital allocation.

Significance of risk transfer

Securitization or credit sale agreements with recourse may be carried out for purposes other
than credit risk transfer (e.g. funding). Where this is the case, there might still be a limited
transfer of credit risk. However, for an originating bank to achieve reductions in capital
requirements, the risk transfer arising from a securitization or credit sale has to be deemed
sufficient by the NRB. If the risk transfer is considered to be insufficient or non existent, NRB
can require the application of a higher capital requirement or, alternatively, may deny a bank
from obtaining any capital relief from the securitization or transfer agreements. Therefore, the
capital relief that can be achieved will correspond to the amount of credit risk that is effectively
transferred.

Credit Risk Mitigants

In case when the eligibility requirements are not fulfilled, NRB will not consider Credit Risk
Mitigants in allocating capital. Similarly, CRM may give rise to residual risks, which may
render the overall risk reduction less effective. Where these risks are not adequately controlled
by the bank, NRB may impose additional capital charges or take other appropriate supervisory
actions.

Operational risk and Market Risk

The framework prescribes simple approaches for allocating capital for operational and market
risk which may not be directly aligned with the volume and complexity of risk. Thus, the
supervisor shall consider whether the capital requirements generated by the prescribed
approaches give a consistent picture of the individual bank's risk exposure in comparison with
the peer group and the banking industry at large. Where NRB is convinced such is not the case,
appropriate supervisory response is warranted.

Market Discipline

The framework requires banks to disclose various key informations about their business on a
periodic basis. It is imperative that the banks discharge their obligations under the disclosure
requirements in order to be eligible to claim benefits of CRM. In line with the utmost
significance of this requirement, the supervisor shall review the adequacy of the disclosures. As
a part of this process itself, the supervisor shall regularly review the website of the banks and
review the contents of the site. Wherever the review process identifies any shortcomings or
non-compliances, appropriate supervisory response shall be initiated.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSE:

Nepal Rastra Bank expects banks to operate above the minimum regulatory capital ratios. If NRB is
not convinced about the risk management practices and the control environment, it has the authority
to require banks to hold capital in excess of the minimum.
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Supervisory adjustments in risk weighted assets and capital

Having carried out the review process as described above, supervisors should take appropriate
action if they are not satisfied with the results of the bank’s own risk assessment and capital
allocation. In such a scenario, NRB shall be empowered to undertake any or combination of the
following adjustments in the banks risk weighted assets and regulatory capital computations.

1.

10.

Shortfall in provisions made by the bank against adversely classified assets shall be
deducted from the Tier 1 capital.

The loans and facilities extended to Directors, Employees (other than loans given under
Employee rules), Shareholders holding more than 1% percent shares and related parties
as well as loans, advances and facilities restricted by the prevailing rules and regulations
shall be deducted from Tier 1 capital.

In case the bank has provided loans and facilities in excess of its Single Obligor Limits,
10% of all such excess exposures shall be added to the risk weighted exposure for credit
risk.

Where the bank has been involved in the sale of credit with recourse facility, 1% of the
contract (sale) value shall be added to the risk weight for credit risk.

Where the banks do not have satisfactory Assets Liability Management policies and
practices to effectively manage the market risks, an additional risk weight of 1% of Net
Interest Income of the immediate previous financial year shall be added to the risk weight
for market risk.

Where the banks do not adopt sound practices for the management of operational risk, an
additional capital charge of 2% to 5% of Gross Income of immediate previous financial
year shall be levied for operational risks.

Where the Gross Income determined for computation of capital charge of Operational
Risk for all of the last three years is negative and where the banks themselves have not
addressed the capital charge for operational risk, 5% of the total credit and investments
net of specific provisions shall be the capital charge for operational risk.

New banks who have not completed a year of operation and hence whose gross income
cannot be measured reliably and where the banks themselves have not addressed the
capital charge for operational risk, shall also be required to compute their capital charge
for operational risk vide the same approach as prescribed for banks with negative gross
income. These banks may use the gross income approach from the second year onwards.
But, based on the reasonableness of the so-computed capital charge for Operation Risk,
during the first three years of operation, review process may require additional proportion
of capital charge.

During the course of review, where the supervisor is not satisfied with the overall risk
management policies and procedures of the bank, the total risk weighted exposures of the
bank shall be increased up to 5%.

In case the bank has not achieved the desired level of disclosure requirements, the total
risk weighted exposures of the bank shall be increased up to 3%.

Banks that do not meet the eligibility requirements to claim the benefit under credit risk
mitigation techniques shall not be allowed the benefit of CRM.

Corrective Actions for Non-Compliances

1.

The failure on part of the banks to meet the provisions of this framework shall be
considered as a violation of the NRB directives and shall attract stipulated actions. The
nature of the enforcement action largely depends on degree of the capital adequacy of the
bank. The trigger points and the prescribed action in case of non-compliance shall be as
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7.3

7.4

per the provisions of Prompt Corrective Action Bylaw,2074 propounded by Nepal Rastra
Bank.

DISCLOSURE
GENERAL:

The purpose of disclosure requirements is to complement the minimum capital requirements and the
review process by developing a set of disclosure requirements which will allow market participants to
assess key pieces of information on the scope of application, capital, risk exposures, risk assessment
processes, and hence the capital adequacy of the bank. It is believed that providing disclosures that
are based on a common framework is an effective means of informing the market about a bank’s
exposure to those risks and provides a consistent and comprehensive disclosure framework that
enhances comparability. The importance of disclosure is more pronounced in cases of banks that rely
on internal methodologies in assessing capital requirements.

DISCLOSURE PRINCIPLES:

Banks should have a formal disclosure policy approved by the Board of Directors that addresses the
bank’s approach for determining what disclosures it will make and the internal controls over the
disclosure process. In addition, banks should implement a process for assessing the appropriateness of
their disclosures, including validation and frequency. While deciding on the disclosure policy, the
board should pay due attention to strike a balance between materiality and proprietary and
confidential information.

a. Materiality

Besides the minimum prescribed disclosure requirements, a bank should decide which
additional disclosures are relevant for it based on the materiality concept. Information would be
regarded as material if its omission or misstatement could change or influence the assessment
or decision of a user relying on that information for the purpose of making economic decisions.

b. Proprietary and confidential information

Proprietary information encompasses information (for example on products or systems), that if
shared with competitors would render a bank’s investment in these products/systems less
valuable, and hence would undermine its competitive position. Information about customers is
often confidential, in that it is provided under the terms of a legal agreement or counterparty
relationship. This has an impact on what banks should reveal in terms of information about
their customer base, as well as details on their internal arrangements, for instance
methodologies used, parameter estimates, data etc. The disclosure requirements set out below
by NRB aims to strike an appropriate balance between the need for meaningful disclosure and
the protection of proprietary and confidential information.

VALIDATION:

The disclosures of the bank should be subjected to adequate validation. In addition, supplementary
material (such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis) that is published should also be subjected
to sufficient scrutiny (e.g. internal control assessments, etc.) to satisfy the validation issue. If material
is not published under a validation regime, for instance in a stand alone report or as a section on a
website, then management should ensure that appropriate verification of the information takes place,
in accordance with the general disclosure principles.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS:

Banks should at minimum, disclose the following information at the stipulated time intervals. At the
same time, banks shall be free to disclose any other information they consider important for its
stakeholders as and when they consider necessary, beyond the prescribed requirements.

a.  Banks should provide the following disclosures as at the end of each financial year along with
the annual financial statements.
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Capital structure and capital adequacy

O

O

O

Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to
be reckoned as capital funds.

Deductions from capital;
Total qualifying capital;
Capital adequacy ratio;

Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to
support current and future activities, if applicable; and

Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

Risk exposures

@)

O

O

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 9 categories of Credit Risk;
Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;

Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

» Restructure/Reschedule Loan

» Substandard Loan

» Doubtful Loan

» Loss Loan

NPA ratios

» Gross NPA to gross advances

» Net NPA to net advances

Movement of Non Performing Assets

Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense

Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense

Details of additional Loan Loss Provisions

Segregation of investment portfolio into Held for trading, Held to maturity and
Available for sale category

Risk Management Function

O

For each separate risk area (Credit, Market and Operational risk), banks must
describe their risk management objectives and policies, including:

» Strategies and processes;

» The structure and organization of the relevant risk management function;
» The scope and nature of risk reporting and/or measurement systems; and
>

Policies for hedging and/or mitigating risk and strategies, and processes for
monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges/mitigants.

L



o Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM.
All banks should make following disclosures on a quarterly basis on their respective websites.
o Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
o Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to be
reckoned as capital funds.

o Deductions from capital;
o Total qualifying capital;
o Capital adequacy ratio;
o Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
o Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 9 categories of Credit Risk;
o Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;
o Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)
» Restructure/Reschedule Loan
» Substandard Loan
» Doubtful Loan
» Loss Loan
o NPA ratios
» Gross NPA to gross advances
» Net NPA to net advances
o Movement of Non Performing Assets
o Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense
o Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense
o Details of Additional Loan Loss Provisions

o Segregation of investment portfolio into Held for trading, Held to maturity and Available
for sale category

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially in
case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

Disclosure requirements under this framework should also be published in the respective
websites of the banks. Such disclosures of the banks should also be updated to reflect the
capital adequacy position of the banks after the supervisory adjustments under the review
process.

Banks are required to report to NRB their capital adequacy computations, according to the
format as specified in Annexure of this framework on a monthly basis within one month after
the end of the month or as required by NRB from time to time. All such returns must be
validated by the internal auditor of the bank. If the monthly internal audit couldnot be carried
out, it should be disclosed on the monthly return. But, such returns at the end of each quarter
must be submitted with the validation from the internal auditor of the bank.
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In addition to the returns specified above, a bank must inform NRB within 30 days of:

1. Any breach of the minimum capital adequacy requirements set out in this framework
together with an explanation of the reasons for the breach and the remedial measures it has

taken to address those breaches.

2. Any concerns it has about its capital adequacy, along with proposed measures to address

these concerns.

e. Full compliance of these disclosure requirements is a pre-requisite before banks can obtain any
capital relief (i.e. adjustments in the risk weights of collateralized or guaranteed exposures) in

respect of any credit risk mitigation techniques.

FORM NO. 1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE (Summary)

(Rs.In .....)
Particulars Current Period Previous Period
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Tier 1 Capital
Tier 2 Capital
Total Capital

Risk-Weighted Exposures

Regulatory Ratios

Current Period

Previous Period

Leverage Ratio

Common Equity Tier 1 to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

Tier 1 to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

FORM NO. 1A CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE

(Rs.In .....)

1. 1 Risk Weighted Exposures

Current Period | Previous Period

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk

b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk

c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk

Adjustments under Pillar 11

Requirement (6.4 a9)

Add: 3% of the total RWE due to non compliance to Disclosure

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar 11)

1.2 CAPITAL Current Period | Previous Period
Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital) (CET1 +AT1) 0 0
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) 0 0

Paid up Equity Share Capital

Equity Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

Retained Earnings

Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(Loss)

Q |=h|D | |0 |T|D

Capital Redemption Reserve
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Capital Adjustment Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

v lslalc|o|s|z|—|Ix[|"|=

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit &
unutilized

Less: Cash Flow Hedge

Less: Defined Benefit Pension Assets

Less: Un recognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities

x|s|<|e|~

Less: Other Deductions

Adjustments under Pillar 11

Less: Shortfall in Provision (6.4 a 1)

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and
Restricted lending (6.4 a 2)

Ad

ditional Tier 1 (AT1)

o3

Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share Capital

o

Perpetual Debt Instruments

o

Stock Premium

Su

pplementary Capital (Tier 1l)

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

Stock Premium

General loan loss provision

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Assets Revaluation Reserve

—|T|IKQ|—h|d|a|lO|T|®

Other Reserves

Total Capital Fund (Tier | and Tier I1)

0

0

1.3 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

Current Period

Previous Period

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures
(After Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's
adjustments of Pillar I1)

Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures(After
Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

FORM NO. 2: RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR CREDIT RISK

¥Y




Risk

Book |Specific |Eligible Risk )
. Net Value . Weighted
A. Balance Sheet Exposures Value |Provision |CRM Weight Exposures
a b c d=a-b-c |e f=d*e
Cash Balance 0 0 0 0% 0
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 0 0 0 0% 0
Gold 0 0 0 0% 0
Invest_ment in  Nepalese  Government 0 0 0 0% 0
Securities
All Claims on Government of Nepal 0 0 0 0% 0
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities 0 0 0 0% 0
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank 0 0 0 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -2) o |0 0 20% 10
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -3) 0 0 0 0% 10
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA-4-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | O
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -7) 0 0 0 0 150% | 0
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and on
Multilateral Development Banks (MDB's) | 0 0 0 0% 0
recognized by the framework
Claims on Other Multilateral Development 0 0 0 0 100% | 0
Banks
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) 0 0 0 0 50% |0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Claims on dor_nestlc banks that meet capital 0 0 0 0 20% 0
adequacy requirements
Cla!ms on domestic panks that do not meet 0 0 0 0 100% | 0
capital adequacy requirements
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20 |0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% |0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region operating with a buffer of | 0 0 0 0 20% 0
1% above their respective regulatory capital
Claims on Domestic Corporates 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Claims secured by Commercial real estate 0 0 0 0 100% | 0
Past due claims 0 0 0 0 150% | 0
High Risk claims 0 0 0 0 150% | 0

¥




Investments in equity and other capital

instruments of institutions listed in the stock | 0 0 0 0 100% | O

exchange

Investments in equity and other capital

instruments of institutions not listed in the | 0 0 0 0 150% | O

stock exchange

Staff loan secured by residential property 0 0 0 0 60% 0

Intere_sft Receivable/claim on government 0 0 0 0 0% 0

securities

Cash in transit apd other cash items in the 0 0 0 0 20% 0

process of collection

Other Assets (as per attachment) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0

Gross - - . Risk
Specific  |Eligible Risk )
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures 32?:; Provision |CRM Net Value Weight \é\:(i;g?liigs
a b C d=a-b-c |e f=d*e

Revocable Commitments 0 0 0 0% 0

Bills Under Collection 0 0 0 0% 0

Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities 0 0 0 0 10% 0

LC Commitments With Original Maturity

Upto 6 months 0 0 0 0 20% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | O
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% | 0

LC Commitments With Original Maturity

Over 6 months 0 0 0 0 50% |0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20 |0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0

Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter

guarantee 0 0 0 0 50% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20 |0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% |0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | O
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0

Underwriting commitments 0 0 0 0 50% 0

Lendl_ng of Bank's Securities or Posting of 0 0 0 0 100% | 0

Securities as collateral

Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with 0 0 0 0 100% | 0

recourse

Advance Payment Guarantee 0 0 0 0 100% |0

Financial Guarantee 0 0 0 0 100% | O

Acceptances and Endorsements 0 0 0 0 100% |0

Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and | O 0 0 0 100% | O

¥\




Securities

Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term)

o

o

o

o

20%

o

Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term)

50%

Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region operating with a buffer of
1% above their respective regulatory capital

requirement

20%

Other Contingent Liabilities

100%

Unpaid Guarantee Claims

200%

TOTAL

Adjustment (A) +(B)

Total RWE for credit Risk Before

o |[Oo|lo|o

o ([O|o|o

o ([O|o|o

o |[Oo|lo|o

o |[Oo|lo|o

Adjustments under Pillar 11

of Single Obligor Limits(6.4 a 3)

Add: 10% of the loan and facilities in excess

4)

Add: 1% of the contract(sale) value in case
of the sale of credit with recourse (6.4 a

adjustments of Pillar I1)

Total RWE for credit Risk (After Bank's

FORM NO.3 ELIGIBLE CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

Credit exposures Deposits
with
Bank

Deposits
with
other
banks/FI

Gold

Govt.&
NRB
Securities

G'tee of
Govt.

of
Nepal

Sec/G't
ee of
Other
Soverei
gns

G'tee of |G'te
domest |e of

ic

MD

banks |Bs

Sec/G't
pe of
Foreig

n
Banks

Total

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Balance Sheet Exposures

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -2)

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -3)

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA-4-6)

Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -7)

Claims on Other Multilateral
Development Banks

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA
0-1)

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA
2)

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA
3-6)

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA
7)

Claims on domestic banks that meet
capital adequacy requirements

Claims on domestic banks that do not
meet capital adequacy requirements

g




Credit exposures Deposits |Deposits|Gold [Govt.& G'tee of|Sec/G't |G'tee of|G'te Sec/G't|Total
with with NRB Govt. |ee of|domest e ofpe of
Bank other Securities of Other |ic MD Foreig
banks/FI Nepal [Soverei|banks |Bs n
gns Banks
(a) (b) () |(d) (e | (@ () |(i)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating
0-1) 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0
2)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0
3-6)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0
7)
Claims on foreign bank incorporated
in SAARC region operating with a
buffer of 1% above their respective
regulatory capital requirement
Claims on Domestic Corporates 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
0-1)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
2)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
3-6)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
7)
Claims secured by Commercial real 0
estate
Past due claims 0
High Risk claims 0
Investments in equity and other 0
capital instruments of institutions
listed in the stock exchange
Investments in equity and other 0
capital instruments of institutions not
listed in the stock exchange
Other Assets (as per attachment)
Total 0
Off Balance Sheet Exposures
Forward Exchange Contract
Liabilities
LC Commitments with Original 0
Maturity Upto 6 months
domestic counterparty
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 0-1)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 2)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 3-6)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0

¥




Credit exposures Deposits |Deposits|Gold [Govt.& G'tee of|Sec/G't |G'tee of|G'te Sec/G't|Total
with with NRB Govt. |ee of|domest e ofpe of
Bank other Securities of Other |ic MD Foreig
banks/FI Nepal [Soverei|banks |Bs n
gns Banks
(a) (b) () |(d) (e | (@ () |(i)
Rating 7)
LC Commitments with Original 0
Maturity Over 6 months
domestic counterparty
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 0-1)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 2)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 3-6)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 7)
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and 0
Counter guaranteedomestic
counterparty
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 0-1)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 2)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 3-6)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 7)
Underwriting commitments 0
Lending of Bank's Securities or 0
Posting of Securities as collateral
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale 0
with recourse
Advance Payment Guarantee 0
Financial Guarantee 0
Acceptances and Endorsements 0
Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares 0
and Securities
Irrevocable  Credit  commitments 0
(Short Term)
Irrevocable  Credit  commitments
(Long Term)
Other Contingent Liabilities 0
Total
Grand Total

FORM NO.4 EXHIBIT OF CLAIMS WITH CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

(Rs.In ..ol

| S.N | Counterparty

| Category | Facility | Outstanding

Eligible CRM

Yo




Nature

Gross
Amount

Haircut

Net
Amount

FORM NO.5 OTHER ASSETS

S.No. Assets

Gross Amount

Specific
Provision&
Valuation
Adjustment

Net
Balance

Cash and Cash Items in Transit

Miscellaneous Expenditure not written off

Fixed Assets

Interest Receivable on Other Investment

Interest Receivable on Loan

Non Banking Assets

Reconciliation Account

ONO|OID|WIN| -

Draft Paid Without Notice

9 Sundry Debtors

10 Advance payment and Deposits

11 Staff Loan and Advance

12 Stationery

13 Other

O|O|0|0O|O|O|0|0|O|o|o|o|o|o

FORM NO. 6: RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR OPERATIONAL RISK

Particulars

Net Interest Income

Commission and Discount Income

Other Operating Income

Exchange Fluctuation Income

Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period

Gross income (a)

Alfa (b)

15%

15%

15%

Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)]

Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times

()

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)]

PILLAR-1I ADJUSTMENTS

If Gross Income for all the last three years is negative(6.4 a 8)

Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific Provision)

Capital Requirement for operational risk (5%)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [g]

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f or g)

9.09

9.09

FORM NO.7 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR MARKET RISK
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S.No. | Currency Open Position (FCY) Open Position (NPR)

Relevant Open Position

INR

usD

GBP

EURO

THB

O N | OB W|IDN| P

N

Total Open Position (a)

Fixed Percentage (b)

5%

Capital Charge for Market Risk [c=(axb)]

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times (d)

9.09

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [e=(cxd)]

FORM NO.: 8 Leverage Ratio

(Rs.In....)

Particulars

Amount

A | Exposure Measure

1. On balance sheet Assets(net of specific provisioning)

2. Repurchase agreements and securities finance

3. Derivatives

4. Off balance sheet exposure

B | Capital Measure

1. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (After regulatory Adjustment)

2. Additional Tier 1 Capital

%

C | Leverage Ratio

Note (if any):

L




AU AL Fp
P FAAT
% qur T ge frawe favm

15 2
HAT qAT AT T Fqa

qATER (g el JaTe TPl Holl ATIEH! I TIeh qVATIaT ATRITHTHT HTaH T 9o
WWWWW%@ ?Oxcmmeaﬁ%@%afwmﬂﬁé%mﬁﬁ%maﬁ

U 3 |
Q. BT AUT FRAYT TS AR ARG GHEferd IRATSTAEEHT AT Hol(es JaTe TGS | bl
T 30 FIE I TRATSTAT =T FH ol qIT adrel GTHT WIHId AT JaTe T FaTe |
az,
(%) ATHA ST TRl HEdl [arT AFadl daer 5. 30 FRISHRT FH IFHHH! ol I 9 AT
SFEATE ATET QAT AT S |

(@) FEITA GTeiTeh TaH T deehl GYehRe%el darsHT Public Private Partnership (PPP) Model
aE Fafgd i, e, qdan, freln, RietHe A ¥ g (e greedT afEremresr €.
Q0 RIS AT | q=T &N ol JAT JIAT F&TH T IT AT aATeT TbT FIAT T |

R [EER faera aRASHESHT Helt 97 GaeT Tare T G
(%) AT fahE IRASHEEAT 11 qAT qaar JaTe &l IRAs=E T geatea fafae=r 4, o,
A qar Eeee ATl AT HURT ThA T T TS, |
g) Fearer @aell qur faeefll FFAEedT FeHd W AUAT AR geeredl RIS g=iad
FTAAH qTAAT T T AT T T |

) qRATSATESH ARl sl (Repayment Schedule) TIR &l A€ JaTe d9T o= THTOTH
HTATHAT T g TR T I, |
3 Sl AR ATH

AT JATE TPl ol /ATISHT FiAT a1 TS FThIAT g1 I+ AIET ATehl AATIehT ATIAT TF0]
FSIT ATICATS ST FHINTH AHLINTT TG,

(@) 9 (Pass) : 9TET qATEHT ¥ 3 HiedATawq A9r@r AT Hal/q9e |
(@) A9 (Sub-standard) . 3 HledTerg JErET § auEaH @l AT Hal/q9e |
(M) @ (Loss) D q ATHARET TG AT ATGT ATEHT ol /ATIC |

qA AT TEH FoiaTs “Figa weii” (Performing Loan) ¥ FHAA JIT @S hofrars “TAieha
Fa1” (Non-performing Loan) |1 gfesaiie TiRuarr 3 |
¥, @S HA Gl SFae

WTET ATHE! AT TATHH] FAAM HA/ATIEATE JETADT B T SHARATHT GRS ol (AT AT T
q5; T AT PT AT QAR BT Seber IUIRH JUT QAR TGN (e THuAs; -

(%) UM 27T TedHT AT ITC Ted bl TTTUIT UHT,

43



(@) %I WO FAATE JaTE TRl holl YW FEEfedd FATSTTHT FANT I, qRFTeTT
oAl AXgehl, THIId GRATSHAT/HaaEare Aifed IH RO {aaqr Tas 3=
FEAT GANT k], FAer0r qar quiasqors] FEAT qUEsTd, oF@r Gevdl  HEA
AETARETHATE TEIART AUH! THTTT HTHAT |

(A1) AT/ ATHTT F=ATAT g AT FRGHT, GRATSAT AT SATAT GoeATATH] AHTH],

() gAIdYs, STHHT 9T A7 GEATEad qiacaes B9 @ (Force Loan) @1 TGHT IoHT
HATATRT BT AT qRUTT AU TTEATHT TG HSIHT RO U fHiqer Teal faaaed oreeir
THUHT,

(3) Holl AqA g7 Gl faardr GFRaT 9% WUAT a1 FeAl UPRAT SRNId aTAqHT Hel
tllC'R'c‘val SERSIRIR

() A g ¢¢w|aﬂamjﬁmmwmﬁmwmwwwwmm

(@) @RE a1 fewprae Wl facast qehmr Mfa (due date) o To fed=Twd SI_ell THUHT,

()

(

O ¥ AT AT SRl SenT et P fAERer dar TR e |
) JATIR faer Sehare Foll Ul | ATRET G¥g Ak a7 GeaTars el /arqe ya

AT |
HTATF Ho Gl qaed
qETER (HATT qRATSTHTHT G RSN ATafad Fotiel gFAT B (el 0 fEaawar gl Arar
ATEHT AT [REATeRl FiaT THHATs HIF GRS AW AT A0 T [ehearepl aTauiaerd ofl AT
AT FTIH T I9 |
ABTAT AT AT GO THITHT Holl Geareel e

F) QAR HE Fbe ATFET AEFEEH AT T T IRATEEH GoATATH! AT T8I

g ATBTAT AT AT GOl THIABT boll 09 FIAF § T MG =M Gl Foirgqeaal ARG
0K, FHIH FaTE TH JaSH |

g) ‘AT bl G ARTGYE, J0WR’ AR §I9d TaT TRUHT =Tl TeBiTehl BoArars ARTIYe

QU QAT TR AT FAET T qUE G | ANRYAPT QO A A A0 HUH ETAT IHh
HATHT AAATIT ol AT AT HAH TG |

MW, FMCISN Foll FRE ARG, 0’ T {qT F. © AT WUH Variance W= =qaed
ARTae AR Hoe! faiqe g8 aiew e gaa |
U] afy T =g

TETHT U= AUTVRT FET U AT T AT FAT GIT A qTe @ | AT ARST Fel U9 At
YR IO AATEET HROT FUAT FoATdd FAfqare @ied s dedl Tk a9 Iq qats 99 T
e g |
TR Y Fay A= FoAT Fare Y& Woa Rfqafa F=tar feear qeemt T g% ga i
A T1 |

FAT AT AIA HTAH T I g

Q) FE e sty aviieRer TRUET & qar facg @iiegssr @it Jaiiar giar TEa®T
ATITRAT SET FRITSTH FAT AT HALAT FTAH TS, -
FAT FITH ATH HAT AT T
(®  a9d q gfqera
@) — FHad ¥, gfeqera
@M q00 gfqera

Y ¥



FHAA A=A TR AT ATIR / FRATET R U] TALATHT HoAHT HIAH AT
AXATATS FHTASA T FqA A AT A6 T Fioh 3 |

(General Loan Loss Provision)” ¢ Ffe#g &ai#l &fir TRUFE &5 T1FTH Faeqrars
“farory T FIFITHT FZrAET (Specific Loan Loss Provision) ” & 7T fergd & 1

() TAREREAT /AT TARANABIHRT UHT Hoflehl AT & ToaT ARl TRl (G Har
WP FEHT A9 A AlpT qaTe) AR g5 auaqeH (Hafaa quesr sEwarar o
FHAETATS A HATHT RO TH FiebT 3 |

(3) gAY faebTa el ATEHT Aol a¥ el Bl ATICETATS TocAl AT FTH T TG, |
JRTEXUHT ATHT FHIA TS G HATHT eI T TS, |

(%) WA ATHT Hollepl (€I &< TF QAT AMpUHhl FAqH Holl ARl SFadTh

graes T GATSIs |

(X) oI /AIE AT faeq @RE q91 feehrsve aHadrs TFhaa-s, |

FATh! TARATTABIHII T TALEALHAT JIIl ATT:

Q). “qIRATABIHO” AT AEHA (TP boll/GAGTH  STHFT T AT/ TAT FQ18T
yERaTars RS |

() “QREIA” AT Holl/ AR FHIT a1 [T qRAqT 9 a1 gvasles qqu2 T
yERaTars RS |

(3) R WOT foe SAHATAT T ATYHT HY A< IRGTHAT JRAMHT O Jo7 Tl oAt v
o IfedAfad T@TIHT ATIRAT SSMAAIAITT G [q9awq AUAT Fofledls TARANABIHIT
/AT TAREEAT THHag, -

(%) Fl AT BRI AT GRE G AU JH,

(@) N AGA & GEATAATAR SATTATAIT F&T foea®q Ul AR, ¥

(TT) FHoATATE TARATARIRIO AT TARESAT T (A FIASHAT T gAHT AfqR<h Al Hofl
TRATTARIRI AT YATELAAT TEhl [AqFH FFA g7 Al SATSIhl HRIAT T=ad qreaeTd
TS THH ALAIIT WTHT |

(¥). i JO AT AT ETE AU GREY SeTER: BTAH K TF e WOAT AR

R fTT SFHATAT 879 AP /A G
9. Cost Overrun, Time Overrun, Cashfow Mismatch W& HeIHAT HRO
HARRTATHT BT AT Horiepl (el AT TS (FEIRG WTETHT STTRTAT AT |
R Ftr fopm a1 e frwifea ST Rt Swaraft afqee S sE ar o B
FRUS AP AaIdT G ar e WMuiikd W™ Sl g7 q9d saedr et
HUTAT |
3. WU FHEAI A Wh TR (.91 fefase (De list) WoAT a1 feferee (De list) &%
YERATAT T8HT |

¥, AP [FEAT AT AT SRR AT AP At foiia =@ a1 (At fadir
HELAT AT THTHAT |
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(%) FST [ARANASIRIO AT TARETTAT TRUHT T AGREE TAF Foll RISAH] AT IS, |

(%) oI JARATIASBTRLOT AT qrARESAAT &l A g aAebl SATAATS ToATh0T T TS |
(\9) REREAT AT TARANARIRRIT TXehT FHoATehl SHAT Gl AT @1 THINAH ol AT =T
FAH TIAEG, -
(F) TECETEAT ¥/AT YARATRIHR T GHIAT GORT aHT AR FREH FATATS
TLTATHATST o AACATHT TAAT T TRATAT T /AT TARATABTBRT TRTHAT F[ATH 3.4
gieTeTd eIl AT AT TS
o, IfEAl IEF TAREREAAT T/ a7 [ARAAIRIT IR |
AT AT FFEAT ST AR AT T/ 4T TR BIehuT IRTHT |
. ST UF qUqH A AT TEY FAl TAREAAT 3/ AT [ARATABIHT TRTHAT |

(@) TERETEAT 3/ AT [IRATABIET T GHIAT GRFT AT B0 SREHT Hol(ellg A

FaT 7. (F) AT S ATebd! ATCTAT TAEEAT /AT [ALATABIEHII TRTAT IATH
Y, iqeT It A SFTT TS |

(M) FAGN, YAFRAT qAT GAT GAT GHT  NGRFT  Ppolleears  [REALEAT /a0
TARATABIH &1 G BEAH TRTHN FHAl AT AT FAH Ae] T | TAEHAT
T/aT QARANABIRI TRUHT FAAT FIAH FAl AR TG AR JeaNqH T ol
frrafira T ST TR B FEES T TS |

(5) (@R & SFa dew qar vee, i @@, v, da/sw, W T fefese
TIAAHT SUNTHT TaTed oAl Guq), e, Qe aada qearad ol qar arel, qre<l,
WP AT TTBFTeh/Id JeITaTe TIfaa SO GRS ST el Foiiers. it
FREAT AT/ AP TG FalE AT ARG (I8 T ArEeaehar I sfacaest
ATARAT PHRIGTAT SATTH FHRTAT 0 FITUT IFH AYA YU T @TAHT MAGTH AATHT

TR Fliehl [IRATAHIHRI AT TAREAAT T (PG, |

Q) TR [IRATASIERT /AT TIRETAT 050 [H HIARANT TREAH] TS, |

é)q%;%wmmmﬁmwwwﬁﬁwzmm‘
|

() STAH THINH TARANABIHLO /AT TAELEAT TRUHT FGEHT L FIALMT FoIl AT

TSN FEAH TS, |

(¥) TG TARAIAHIHRUT T/ AT [ARELTAT TXUHT FoAEeeg A a9 HT FH(HR0 TRUH

W AT FAHN T, | TARELHAT AT [ARANABIH TRYHT FoAiepl At fopear qow

TP T AR g3 a4 AT TTH STaSITHT AT FAATE TG HATHT IR

T i B |

(R) ST (3) THIAH FRTHOr TRUHT FoATEEHT (FER Gg TAR THINS, |

q0. HAT A ATITATS FHTASA A YIS AT : FHoll ATRTHT HATEITATS BTdRT ATLTATE P
THTATSTH T I -

(%) STl Aqeig= UHT,

(@) Tl AT [hedTaral a1 ATRTE TAHAT TUAT Holl AU AATAR] FHoAl AT FTEdT
FIH & AR TR TTAFAE] Holl ATT TR Foll AT ST,

1%



(1) qAREREAT a7 JARCIAIRIU TRUHT FHoliehl AT qAT SATTHl AR AR o AUGHH
fraftaa woaT 3

(51) 1T =[ThHT HTAT |
9. IR-sfFy Tfaer A sEen 3 faw e s
(1) qaATaR faerd Seel B FAl AGAT AHCHT AREHT e AT afar@d W Aty @rar 3 A

IS TG, | FAT A T faqettaerar fadr foamdt &t foama o a9 arha ger T
THE | WP & ARl gEfad a9 Hea a1 fadr G T Attedl [aaaeHe aeqel o T
THHHA T HH g HIEl UAHT HeATsd T U4g | e fudrel a6R qed dofiel o
THAART HH ATAT HH TUST THHA Alel AfGE JUAT ATRT /AR EAQradT @9 el TRl
Gl HITHT I IS, |

TR, T T3 &l AT T oAby Frafd arqdqer! TH qequl =997 fearer fam Faueaes
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AGT AT qur foia faeRuEsed gt I gaen

JATIR faehrd Sebel AT I F@TeIg adr fadia faaruesesr gien are=dr Jud e S
TH, 045 T THT 9& of [GUhl ATTPR TN T IBTAHRT (ST ST TRTHT 3 |
Q) Fei faaror vt sgaen
AT T HATATTAINTH At faarves TR TWues |
F.  oATfeE
qifd a9 Tl e auehl TS § AN bl qUHl AR AATTIEHR] AATATS AT,
| I TEATYAT AT T ATHT FEIATIAT HUhT (HiqeRg AR AT THR! AATg ATk a9
AT, |
g, TE bl dlebebl BIETeATS SeTiHe = (Statutory Form) @1 39T fesa

TG S AMBGTHT gram ¥ fafg dar i fFerer dar T 9\ e | J9YER qar TRIw
forirar foraRorert er@radrerer S qur fadia gen gver U9, 093 | qifeusl gHATattaT
TH RISAIAS, |

T, geEfad @l ATISUSH] AR I

T AT faeira faarores Jare faxfra gfqae=a (NFRSs) @R TR T 99 | JuTe
[ GfqaaTHIT qHTEET AVl SFeSHT Aeieed fadr giqaaaa (IFRSs) @5 AT
TIAT fATIg |

. AT faxiT fgares gere T

FIAAT FAEAT T AMFTHN AAMINTT AGTIRIET FFI Tgaearg, faarg faee aifve giqasd
qeTehTaT JeRIfRT T[T AT AT qREderT ST SedTecHT amatas T 99 | 91,
TR STARRIBT AN [ TaedTehl faazor, AT a1 A= faaxor, faeqa e
fera=or (Statement of Comprehensive Income), & WaTe faa=or, sadram SUr qiead=e
faeazor 7 99 e 9 9 FEItHe! IS s 3 gHE faxia qeers A aRE Fave
ifteaedRer afTehTaT S T faxia WEdT Qe U, 093 AT AihUHr guaratg T afar
AT JHITT TS, |

T = fa<ira ufqaes Y THIH

@) Thiga faxia gfqaed aFmad yHE fad aRa=wEeedl d=aed faag giqaed (@
iqaae) T9 TATSTART AT AR Teh! STATHT 8¥ch TIHTR! ATEAT eqdTd TUH! fAfder ©
fefirT & U aeavepl afHe ARTehTHT ATETd FTHT YT TRT AIehT Tk Wi S
o7 faira Fer MoAe [@9RT ¥ watad qaieae e G60d g9ded RIS I748, |
qy, sreed faira yfqaaser faqd faare a9 Sepel qIfhiauart gr=rdT AT JeraTgaar
TE 1S | T faeqa amand o gfqasd Jaargear ARausr STerT afTHrE T Jerer
e gfTae a1 q9d Ioord IS, |
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(x) =areH faxirar wfqeae Y™ el Afqeard TUAT ATie dEraeiehere JHIvg TR
AT FHTTH IS, |

(3) &P ATMIF FURT ATAT FEATeIT FEATH! AARSHT A=ARH ol qfqaad T A@ra€raro
quepl faxirg foaeor = Sf@ua R TEerwaAT HROT GoATE dTfcTehles TTAT TLATHT ATE
GfeTarawepl eV ITHTHT T ool cTebebl @ITHT YeRTHTd T |

(¥) yarw o gfqaes gt &l STh Aaidedl wHERl aiFd, hHERE grEied
GIET T ATIF AMAAH TFIU Goes UaH [MAATHN U qHders FATEeT T
AT FHIRTT THIAS, |

(%) TEAATIRUTHT SATAHIHT AT AARTHT AACH [T Gfqaad TepreTd a7 “Faeaeror T
[T a9 aTed d@radiedd 99/9¢ M9 [Haed fSuAT avskd faira [qERoAr wRe aq
TG T SHERTH HIAE TG T T{IAS, |

(%) T, |ifq, o qar AT ot TRusT faume aHa qarar fawe St saaearae
FHIH FHTEST T (oA qiqaeTd1T B Tl AaLITHT GrIiedd daTers ATa9deh
FRATE! TS, |

. T TSRl TATSTH A¥aT=IHT

79 [AEe SHITSTH HRAT AT @Al AER o@Ted, HeATgd adT T&ATH0 TR &,
fAéTes evmader @ Rl a9r anacass qu FOHT e feeror g @i |
YART T qTEAs; | T sAebabl fafqe (Haem awifaw a9 Sar fafaer faammesar ot 9 a9
TAT GHIH T I9 TAT3ET T8 Sobebl qeaivdd (e FuIfTH § gg | 9qrd, a9 Tehep
fgere it a9 Sl fafaer faamT qor srtaaesar o1 9 aF e qers wRwee
TAT TTITH T I TN ABTHT aRor qeeedl 370 & qiq fqemere a9 fAaemer amar
Q“Ir \%gl

AT JATSTAH AN TAR ITRA @l [qazer qeaegHT

79 A gt AR fahTe Skl ATRANE TATTHER! AT JIR TR q ofEn
faaRure® AR T ATUT AR AT |

R R s s 122 2 L1 2 o M e £ W e B R i R

fairer faraorert & 9fTeF SI=vTeT YW AREehl WC arqie &T of1Se PraH TET a9 Febol qrehepl
FATHT FH aEdd T 9Ed G | O, AAGEeSHT Seoid HURT “qwr” ofidei T e
AEALTHAT ATAR AT eMUFae FHEL T FIFAS, |

. e faair faavores Ter T

AT AT s fEdTaehl ATIRAT TR IRepl ANy faard faaor ares s@radierdere gRisTE
FAGTINE BT U AUGTS, TR ATR] YRISTE Fiqaed, I Giqaed IR FaeqTI=eh]
TATE qAT GIhT ATIRAT TH obel AMBEGTRT I=TAT TR ATRUHT fadrer fqaroes anfds a9
TAT AUHI 3 HAeATHT FEfegd qURAere qanmar Erafaer aihT 997 6 998 | I
feravuTEsdT TF=aHT T9 Sebepl TR -TIeTq Waﬂwﬁwﬁaﬁmﬁﬁﬁmma‘r
FHITH FHESE T e a9 AT WUH! ¥ Hlewr T (WIE 99 TUH! AGEITAT TErdT
g7 T AEANT) @R wF R T uNg | A", gemEtead fake e,
AR ST AT qqdad qIT @R Afed RUE (Long Form Audit Report, LFAR)
AGTINETT TEI HURT QY [GATT TF Sehepl Frafeard AL fqamme<ar g1 T g |
AT IR TATHT TR AT T9T T FASATS TIR Wl AT feqrar (Annual
Accounts) & qUaE0r faaRTeRr TEAfd fauz AT Arestiae THIAE, |
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R i faavor qarR IR AR 9 TE @i

(@) fa<ira faazer qar el A9 faxi afqeea e (NFRSs) FHINGE IR 9 9 | F9Td of@r
YA TATIIT ATREHT SFgSHT AT fai iqagaq (IFRSs) @Tg ATIRepl FIHT
fa s |

(@) faaRe qTUR &1 A9ATS d@HIiaes A9 faxird gfqaaTd@ (NFRSs) A1 Jefad AaedTe]
HATHT TE QAR (qeprg Sehepl oaerd ATTATE R IR Ao IWHINTH s, |
gH@ @i (Significant Accounting Policies) $TTHAT Sei@ T IH8 | d@MIIdes IRadT
T 9eAT q9re faxir gfqagada (NFRSs) &1 dAdWAT @0 9iegad T9 dfeag | 9ieaad
TRUET S@Tlidesdl faaer faxdi faavoredr o@r aveedr feoull o= d Basis of Preparation

@I Changes in Accounting Policies =RTd Jeer@ I |

[ERRECINICEIRIEE

FEATT JAAFIT T F@HINT FTHIIH FAH g4 G HATRIATE b qa7 faeirar dear qeeedr O,
093 TIT TG Fehebl MEITAIHINTHHT JAAE TAT AT HIUEEHT THHA ASHIE T Tl &
HATRTATE TETTAHITSTHE! FTHAHT FHRTS T FEAH AUH THHATE AT faaqeor 9 Aicheeg
|

() ¥l dfear NFRSs Compliant fa<ig fgaver @™ &l Opening Statement of Financial
Position @1 T a9l faxia fqa=oAT NFRSs a#itsH fafae ofiveesd qwmeE T
AfS=Iq HATHTHT THH STFAT TRHAT AT aRTeRE THAATs Statement of Changes in Equity #THd
afs=ra HATHT (Retained Earning) @TaT @< < fAaAA®NT #W (Regulatory Reserve) AT ST
T |

(@) ufedr NFRSs Compliant fa<ira faarer qonr @@ ge=maer avewes fa<di faazoesdr e
FHITTHH! MaaaERT THEET T HIAT@Rr ®W (Regulatory Reserve) AT I6H ST#AT/@H
T |
() Q) TAER (TFT Thhl FEHITTHITAT @T3H TRURT FATR AT ATRHHS TG

bl fTEeT THITTH TTATAT MR (Accrual Basis) AT «1@Tse TR =TS AT (&
T dFHl g7 EFT 78 ARGTT GrafeEar G SFHT AT ARGH FAHT AET
TRUFT T THFT TIT HATIF T GHTT TUF 94 AT qIed TUFE 7T 7HH) qTedhd
A UTT g Al ATl ATFRTAT SRTAeh] THHHAT TATAd [HAATTARD ATTHT TAT FHATT
STE FIAT T Tl THHATS Aisad HATRT (Retained Earning) @8 @ 1T (HIAAHT
FITHT STHAT T T | STh ATl THH G180 ATTH] [IAAGR] Hyare df=rd HATH
(Retained Earning) AT fRdT 19 Afeeas |

(}) qaluR fqeE Sea F@s 7@ qvend @gd g1 qar Financial Closure &R
il ST YWIHLITehT W@l AT SETATHIH TS
RN SER (Accrual Basis) AT @@ TRU@H 4& safa /Moratorium Period &t

ToTATS {SireRRur Tt Yotrea sATer WhHeTs Interest Capitalized Term Loan (ICTL)
MNIFAT G QBT TS |

ICTL W1 S@ich AT Yoliehel AT SRISH! THAAT Joioet FIHTARET ABT el
FHAR AT FIT T Al (HAATS qioad {ATHT (Retained Earning) @9 T
Interest Capitalized Reserve (ICR) @[T d@i& T IS | IIA AQiHT W
Interest Capitalized Reserve (ICR) @18 fraw@&{i ® (Regulatory Reserve)
I el s | ICTL AT A@ie WOH {olied saTsl (A <l OO I
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(3)

(3)

FHAE ICR 91 ©eE |faq H{ATwT BReHr 9% arues | a9 gt Jr
Yiaies [WEATHITAA RHT S

1. At the time of Income Recognition
Accrued Interest Receivable a/c Dr
To Interest Income Cr

2. At the time of Interest Capitalization

Interest Capitalized Term Loan (ICTL) a/c Dr
To Accrued Interest Receivable (AIR) a/c Cr
Retained Earnings a/c Dr

To Interest Capitalized Reserve(ICR) a/c  Cr
3. At the time of Recovery

Cash/Bank a/c Dr
To ICTL a/c Cr
ICR a/c Dr
To Retained Earning a/c Cr

TS 8¢ HATHT I @I SR @i T gl A (Impairment
Loss)TdT 9 Sebebl 3.91.1AG9TH . R FHITSTH 1| g ol ATl FadT (Loan Loss
Provision) T fa&dqa faawer yeie FoH™HT d9R T 998 | NFRSs IHINH o@rs+ gq
FSAT BT ATHTAID THH 3T (A 7. X THITH PAH A ol AR FaLT THH
A3 FH WUAT HH AUSHG THH AMHE STAT qsaq TATRT (Retained Earning) @Tarars
g T AATERT FHOHT STET T 998 | NFRSs FHINGH o@isd g9 &ell &l
e |

qatar faere Sed Fater faim gfqes He (NFRSS) sHITH Fair value through
profit or loss AT @IS TRl AVMHIHT AT I+ F FHEeHT Fair value gain
(unrealized gain) WUHT S<h ATHRT IHAATE dfsad HATHRT (Retained Earning)
Grardrs @9 TR [HIHAERT HITHT STHAT T I, | [HIHTSRT HITH] STHT ATH
THH NFRSs aHITeH F¥Ifead d¥rael Fair value gain @del aT Fair value loss
HUH AGLATAT Al IHAATS ATk TTH [HIHAH PIVaTe Aferd FATRTAT T
T Al |

AT @I THITH @Tge TRUE IR dihy qeafas Fa 760 IR diby qeara qar
TR AUHT Fis=d AATRT @rarars @ T [AIHTHRT HITA] STHT T I, | T&0 THH
W afey gvafa T quer TUHT 9T @WESHET AT THRT TRl auHT HaHeeR
FIATE Fload AATHT GIATHT fRAT 19 Al |

fordirr Faroren wfsara {ATeT T/a1 o7 faaRur A {ATET €9 St g8 S @)
TR SRTERF! THH Afsad HATHRT @ATeTs @9 T FIATERE HTHr ST T 9 |
T HIHI 9 TUET &N T Y FHEdel Tea (Carrying Amount) AT FHT ST
FYAT FHT ATCH SRTERH] (A [AIHAARRI HUaTe Alaad qATRT @A war T
afereg |
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(F) ATHT @IS THITH Goodwill @I &l o@Tg= Taihl T9HT Goodwill T fearet
I (Carrying Amount) SRTERF! THH Afoad HATHT GIATdTs @ TR IHTHRT HIEHT
STET T 993 | A1, Goodwill T BTHT FTeRITHT (Impairment Loss) ATRT e femerar
g9 «@rsd I Goodwill FT fFATET Hea (Carrying Amount) STdel SAAZATAT &1 AT
TRTERHT TFH HIHAHTE FITATE Ffsaa TATRT GIATHT TRl T Ffehes; |

(T) ATHT @G FHITH Merger/acquisition @ fafsfa Bargain Purchase Gain @&l o@Ts+
THT F@Tg &6l U1 drebl fhardl Ted (Carrying Amount) SRTERT ThH dled
HATRT @TATATE @ T FIHAHT HTTHAT FTHAT I 995 T A1 ¥6H Bonus Share S
T JATSRT AT | JAET T+ 4fb & | @19, Bargain Purchase Gain &l I&HaTE
BonusShare Tt ATNT Fwafead qafeaerer e Ter & |l faeqa faazor afeq
TQT T I | AN Spare Wkl TaTT HUH FaLaTAT Bonus Share STRT TRl IHATH
TN FIvare Fisaa AATRT @ArET fhal T9 dfde, |

(@) SATHT @I FHITH FHATRT @bl o@rga &l ardiied qarsd (Actuary Valuation)
FHITTH fas=T 9U#T Actuarial Loss @8 Other Comprehensive Income T @@TgH HUH!
HATITH] Al SRTERE] IHH Ao HATH] Grarals = T (aHAAHRT HIOAT ST T
TAg | Actuarial Loss H HUHT HH AU ThH [AIHTAHNT HIoaTE Al=Idq HATRT @I
frat = @fes |

(3T) @I THINTH e @@= TehH ATRT AT Qe «@rg 9% Other Comprehensive
Income WIhd a1 AI¥h @M o@sd WE SEdl fedrd ammiael dwEtad ieE
HUMCAE WOHT &l SRTeRE] Fioad AAHT Grarars @= T AT HOAT ST T
THE | F ATE TTAT GET SNTHAT AR @IS TUHT AT AT AT RIS
TFH (FIATERT PITHT STFAT AUH THH 9T g6l dgd ) ITAaeny HeHr @« 10
fserd HATHT @AM ST T Aiehs; |

(@) T Jifgd  HaETETEddl ArEfad guikase faanre fage feuamifawer
FIweeT FITHT AN TS, |

() AT HATHT @9 T (AATHNT HITHT STHHT AUH THH [FTATHN HUaTE I qroad
HATHTAT fRAT g7 Saem AuHT (M ®ivere fFal g4 YHH A HITH STFT HUH
THH AT TEl g |

(W) TATHTHRT FITHT THAT TUHT THH TG FaTH] IfecAtad aRaT TaH T8 sebel Ul Tl

e HALITET G T TG |

(%) IAEAHTT BITHT THAT USR] qIqT @9 USR] ThH Fled HIOHT AUR! Tad-ehl [aa20 ATHT
fairer faarurenT or@r gwaredr fewroi (Notes to Accounts) AT Ii@ (Disclose) THITE |
(¥) ATRT AT fEATEHT f@TgedA A9 Other Comprehensive Income HThd <@TgsH &4 ATH Ui
Retained Earning AT “@TgeA gl a1 ATHIST [0 T TR @@rged aal R0 gfdqerd TFH General
Reserve T STFT I, |

(R). RN T FEATE

Q) TG Fepare TIA TARN TRTHT TETTHT (HEITHES @RS TRUHT G -
THIRd 39, 005 &I «@l Afq qa7 f&a<ird faauesesr = arawdl aedr e =,
¥ o Sl TRURT (A9 qur |1 gewna fAfq R050 A€ HETAEEE SN WOHET I
farsae T Fefead TR aRIAER |

R
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>
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Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2
Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions 4.3
Derivative financial instruments 4.4
Other trading assets 4.5
Loan and advances to B/FIs 4.6
Loans and advances to customers 4.7
Investment securities 4.8
Current tax assets 4.9
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10
Investment in associates 4.11
Investment property 4.12
Property and equipment 4.13
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14
Deferred tax assets 4.15
Other assets 4.16
Total Assets
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18
Derivative financial instruments 4.19
Deposits from customers 4.20
Borrowing 4.21
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9
Provisions 4.22
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15
Other liabilities 4.23
Debt securities issued 4.24
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25
Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital 4.26

Share premium
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Retained earnings

Reserves 4.27
Total equity attributable to equity
holders

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28

Net assets value per share

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended ......Asar 20.......

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year

Interest income 4.29

Interest expense 4.30

Net interest income

Fee and commission income 4.31

Fee and commission expense 4.32

Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission income

Net trading income 4.33

Other operating income 4.34

Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans

and other losses 4.35

Net operating income

Operating expense

Personnel expenses 4.36

Other operating expenses 4.37

Depreciation & Amortization 4.38

Operating Profit

Non operating income 4.39

Non operating expense 4.40

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense 441

Current Tax
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Deferred Tax

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended ......Asar 20.......

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to above items
Net other comprehsive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
e Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
e Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
e Income tax relating to above items
e Reclassify to profit or loss
Net other comprehsive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equited method
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the period
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Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Group
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank o
c
& 2 2 g 2
= gﬁwg_gw%w>w§w§5 ) s g
o2 2E §c 8F2S5c S BeesE52 5 ¢ 3
ST ES0 53288838 388558 55L& 58
nO naoaOllogexrxcecuwLe xexxoOL  Z2E£ -
Balance at Sawan 1, 20...
Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted/Restated balance at Sawan 1, 20.....
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Other
Total contributions by and distributions
Balance at Asar end 20.....
Balance at Sawan 1, 20......
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year (V)



Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognized in equity

Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid

Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....

Bank
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
b 2 3 o
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Balance at Sawan 1, 20...

Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted/Restated balance at Sawan 1, 20.....
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued

Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Non-controlling

interest
Total equity

Total



Balance at Asar end 20.....

Balance at Sawan 1, 20......

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognized in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid

Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....
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Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank
Consolidated Statement of cash flows

For the year ended ........ Asar 20.......
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Fees and other income received

Divided received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees

Other expense paid

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities

Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets

Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
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Interest received
Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at Sawan 1, 20.......
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 20.....

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank
Notes to the consolidated financialstatements

for the year
ended...... Asar........

1 Reporting entity
General and background information of infrastructure developmentbank and its subsidiary.
This shall also include the principal activities and location of the head office of the reporting
entity.

2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 | Statement of compliance

2.2 | Reporting period and approval of financial statements

2.3 | Functional and presentation currency

2.4 | Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

2.5 | Changes in Accounting policies

2.6 | New standards issued but not yet effective

2.7 | New Standards and interpretation not adopted

2.8 | Discounting

3 Significant Accounting Policies
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3.1 | Basis of Measurement
3.2 | Basis of consolidation
a. Business combination
b. non controlling interest (NCI)
c. Subsidiaries
d.Loss of Control
e. Special Purpose Entity (SPE)
f.Transaction elimination on consolidation
3.3 | Cash andcash equivalent
3.4 | Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition
Classification
Measurement
De-recognition
Determination of fair value
Impairment
3.5 | Trading assets
3.6 | Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
3.7 | Property and Equipment
3.8 | Goodwill Intangible assets
3.9 | Investment Property
3.10 | Income tax
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
3.11 | Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
3.12 | Provisions
3.13 | Revenue Recognition
Interest income
Fee and commission income
Dividend income
Net trading income
Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss
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Cash and cash equivalent 4.1
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Cash in hand

Balances with B/Fls

Money at call and short notice

Other

Total

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Statutory balances with NRB

Securities purchased under resale agreement

Other deposit and receivable from NRB

Total

Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Placement with domestic B/FIs

Placement with foreign B/Fls

Less: Allowances for impairment

Total

Derivative financial instruments 4.4
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Other

Total
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Other trading assets
Group

Bank

4.5

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Treasury bills
Government bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged
Non-pledged

Loan and advances to B/FIs
Group

Bank

4.6

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Loans to bank and financial institutions
Less: Allowances for impairment

Total

4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

Balance at Sawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal
Amount written off

Balance at Asar end

Loans and advances to customers
Group

Bank

4.7

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost

Less: Impairment allowances
Collective impairment
Individual impairment

Net amount

Loan and advances measured at
FVTPL

Y



Total

4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances - By Product
Group

Bank

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Product
Long Term loans
Personal
Business
Working Capital
Overdraft (Personal)
Trust receipt/Import loans
Cash Credit Loan
Short Term WC/Demand Loans
Personal residential loans
Real estate loans
Margin lending loans
Hire purchase loans
Auto Loan
Deprived sector loans
Bills purchased
Staff loans
Other

Sub total

Interest receivable

Grand total

4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency
Group

Bank

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japanese yen
Chinese Yuan
Other

Total

cq



4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Secured
Movable/immovable assets
Gold and silver
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls
Government guarantee
Guarantee of international rated bank
Collateral of export document
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt
Collateral of Government securities
Counter guarantee
Personal guarantee
Other collateral
Subtotal
Unsecured
Grant Total
4.7.4: Allowances for impairment
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Sawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment
Other movement
Balance at Asar end

Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment
Other movement
Balance at Asar end

%



Total allowances for impairment

Investment securities 4.8
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Investment securities measured at amortized cost
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI

Total

4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities

Total
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4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities
Group

Bank

Previous

Current Year Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Fair

Fair Fair Fair
Cost ;/alu Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
Investment in quoted equity
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Investment in unquoted equity
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total
Current tax assets 4.9
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets
Tax assets of prior periods
Current tax liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities
Tax liabilities of prior periods
Total
Investment in subsidiaries 410
Bank
Current Previous
Year Year

Investment in quoted subsidiaries
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries
Total investment

Less: Impairment allowances

Net carrying amount
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4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries

4.10.2: Investment in unquoted subsidiaries

4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank

Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end........

Bank
Current Previous
Year Year
Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Bank
Current Previous
Year Year
Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Bank

Percentage of ownership held by
the Bank

Current Previous
Year Year
Group
Current Year
..Ltd  ...Ltd. ...Ltd  ...Ltd.
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Dividend paid to NCI

Previous Year

..Ltd  ...Ltd. ..Ltd ... Ltd.
Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end........
Dividend paid to NCI
Investment in associates
Group
Current Previous Current
Year Year Year
Investment in quoted associates
Investment in unquoted associates
Total investment
Less: Impairment allowances
Net carrying amount
4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates
Group Bank
Previous
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Year
) Fair . .
Fair Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost ;/alu Cost Value Cost Value
.................................. Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
.................................. Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total
411.2: Investment in unquoted
associates
Group Bank
Previous
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Year
) Fair . .
Fair Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost ;/alu Cost Value Cost Value
............................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
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4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Bank

Group Bank
Percentage of Percentage of
ownership held by the ownership held by the
Bank Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
4.11.4: Equity value of associates
Group
Current Previous
Year Year
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
Total
Investment properties 4.12
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Investment properties measured at fair
value
Balance as on Sawan 1, ........

Addition/disposal during the year
Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Net amount

Investment properties measured at
cost

Balance ason Sawan 1, ........
Addition/disposal during the year

Adjustment/transfer
Accumulated depreciation
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Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount

Total

Property and Equipment

Group

4.13

Particulars

Land

Building

Leasehold
Properties

&

Computer

Accessories

Vehicles

&

Furniture
Fixture

Machinery

&

Equipment
Others

Total Asar end

20X2

Total Asar End

20X1

Cost
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Depreciation charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals
Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Bank

Particulars

Land

Building

Leasehold
Properties

&

Computer

Accessories

Vehicles

&

Furniture
Fixture

Machinery

&

Equipment
Others

Total 31st Asar

20X2

Total Asar End

20X1

Cost
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
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Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X1

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Depreciation charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals
Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14
Group
. Software Total ngl
Particulars Goodwill Purchased | Developed Other | Asar end ond
20X2
20X1
Cost

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X1

3




Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Bank

Particulars

Goodwill

Software

Purchased

Developed

Other

Total
Asar end
20X2

Total
Asar
end

20X1

Cost

As on Sawan 1, 20X0

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

4.15
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Deferred Tax

Group Bank
Current Year Current Year
Net Defer Defer Net
D Deferr Deferred Deferred
eferred d Tax Tax red red Tax
Tax eL_ P Tax Tax
Assets _|ab||| As_setg/ . Asset Liabil AS.SEW. .
) ties (Liabilitie s ities (Liabiliti
Particulars s) es)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls
Loans and advances to customers
Investment properties
Investment securities
Property & equipment
Employees’ defined benefit plan
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Other temporary differences
Deferred tax on temporary differences
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of ........
Recognised in profit or loss
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Recognised directly in equity
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, ........
Origination/(Reversal) during the year
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity
Previous Year Previous Year
Net Net
Defer Defer
Deferred Ddefirr ?eferred red red ?eferred
Xax t eLiabi?iX Agé(ets/ Xax t -er'ixb'l A:l;(ets/
. SSEts ties (Liabilitie . SS€ iti'ss ! (Liabiliti
Particulars 5) es)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls
Loans and advances to customers
Investment properties
Investment securities
Property & equipment
Employees' defined benefit plan
Lease liabilities
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Provisions
Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of ........

Recognised in profit or loss
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Recognised directly in equity

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1,

Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity

Other assets 4.16
Group Bank

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Assets held for sale

Other non banking assets

Bills receivable

Accounts receivable

Accrued income

Prepayments and deposit

Income tax deposit

Deferred employee expenditure

Other

Total

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Money market deposits
Interbank borrowing
Other deposits from BFls

Settlement and  clearing
accounts

Other deposits from BFIs

%



Total

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Refinance from NRB
Standing Liquidity Facility
Lender of last report facility from NRB
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements
Other payable to NRB
Total
Derivative financial
instruments 4.19
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Other
Total
Deposits from customers 4.20
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Institutions customers:
Term deposits
Call deposits
Current deposits
Other

Individual customers:
Term deposits

RY



Saving deposits
Current deposits
Other

Total

4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Group

Bank

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japenese yen
Chinese yuan

Other

Total

Borrowing

Group

Bank

421

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Institutions

Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial
Institutions

Multilateral Development
Banks

Other Institutions

Sub total

Total

Provisions

Group

Bank

4.22

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Provisions for redundancy
Provision for restructuring
Pending legal issues and tax
litigation
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Onerous contracts
Other

4.21.1: Movement in provision
Group

Bank

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Balance at Sawan 1
Provisions made during the
year

Provisions used during the
year

Provisions reversed during the
year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Asar end

Other liabilities
Group

Bank

4.23

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations
Liability for long-service
leave

Short-term employee benefits
Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on deferred grant
income

Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under  Finance
Lease

Employee bonus payable
Other

Total

4.22.1: Defined benefit obligations
Group

Bank

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Current Previous

Year Year

Current

Year

Previous
Year

%



Present value of unfunded

obligations
Present value of funded
obligations
Total present value of
obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Present  value of  net

obligations

Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations

4.22.2: Plan assets

Group Bank
Plan assets comprise
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Equity securities
Government bonds
Bank deposit
Other
Total
Actual return on plan assets
4.22.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Defined benefit obligations at Sawan 1
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid by the plan
Current service costs and interest
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end
4.22.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Fair value of plan assets at Sawan 1
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Asar end

4.22.5: Amount recognized in profit or loss

qo00



Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Total
4.22.6: Amount recognized in other comprehensive income
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Total
4.22.7: Actuarial assumptions
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Discount rate
Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase
Withdrawal rate
Debt securities issued 4.24
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities issued at
amortized cost
Total
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 4.25
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Redeemable preference shares
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component)
Other
Total
Share capital 4.26
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
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Year Year Year Year

Ordinary shares
Convertible preference shares (equity component only)
Irredeemable preference shares (equity component only)
Perpetual debt (equity
component only)
Total
4.25.1: Ordinary shares

Bank

Current Previous

Year Year
Authorized Capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs.
100 each
Issued capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs.
100 each
Subscribed and paid up
capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs.
100 each
Total

4.25.2: Ordinary share ownership
Bank
Current Year Previous Year

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other Institutions

Percent Amount

Percent Amount

Public
Other
Foreign ownership
Total
Reserves 4.27
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

90%



Statutory general reserve
Exchange equalization reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve
Investment adjustment reserve
Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve

Dividend equalization reserve
Actuarial gain

Special reserve

Other reserve

Total

Contingent  liabilities and

commitments 4.28
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Total

4.28.1: Contingent liabilities
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Acceptance and documentary credit
Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts
Guarantees

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
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Group Bank

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Undisbursed amount of loans
Undrawn limits of overdrafts
Undrawn limits of credit cards
Undrawn limits of letter of credit
Undrawn limits of guarantee

Total

4.28.3: Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made
in financial statements

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to
Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

4.28.4: Lease commitments

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

q0%



Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation

Explanatory paragraphs are required for litigation contingent liabilities as per their own case of
each bank

Interest income 4.29
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities

Loan and advances to staff

Other

Total interest income

Interest expense 4.30
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

Borrowing

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other

Total interest expense

Fees and Commission Income 431
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

90%



Loan administration fees
Service fees

Consortium fees
Commitment fees

DD/TT/Swift fees
Credit card/ATM issuance and
renewal fees

Prepayment and swap fees
Investment banking fees
Asset management fees
Brokerage fees
Remittance fees

Commission on letter of credit
Commission on guarantee contracts
issued

Commission on share
underwriting/issue

Locker rental

Other fees and commission income

Total fees and Commission
Income

Fees and commission expense
Bank

Group

4.32

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

ATM management fees
VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees

Remittance fees and commission
Other fees and commission expense

Total fees and Commission
EXxpense

Net trading income
Bank

Group

4.33

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Changes in fair value of trading
assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading
assets

Interest income on trading assets

10%



Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss foreign exchange
transaction

Other

Net trading income

Other operating income 4.34
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Foreign exchange revaluation gain

Gain/loss on sale of investment

securities

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties

Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and

equipment

Gain/loss on sale of investment

property

Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other

Total

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other 435

losses '
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total

Personnel Expense 4.36
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Salary

Allowances

Gratuity expense
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Provident fund

Uniform

Training & development expense
Leave encashment

Medical

Insurance

Employees incentive
Cash-settled share-based payments
Pension expense

Finance expense under NFRSs
Other expenses related to staff

Subtotal
Employees bonus
Grand total
4.37
Other operating expense
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Directors' fee
Directors' expense
Auditors' remuneration
Other audit related expense
Professional and legal expense
Office administration expense
Operating lease expense
Operating expense of investment
properties
Corporate  social  responsibility
expense
Onerous lease provisions
Other
Total
Depreciation & Amortization 4.38
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Depreciation on property and
equipment

Depreciation on investment property
Amortization of intangible assets

Total

0%



Non operating income

4.39

Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Recovery of loan written off

Other income

Total

Non operating expense 4.40
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Loan written off

Redundancy provision

Expense of restructuring

Other expense

Total

Income tax expense 4.41
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Current tax expense

Current year

Adjustments for prior years

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Changes in tax rate

Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses

Total income tax expense

4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Profit before tax

Tax amount at tax rate of.......... %

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose
Less: Tax effect on exempt income

0%



Add/less: Tax effect on other items

Total income tax expense

Effective tax rate
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Statement of distributable profit or loss
For the year ended
(As per NRB Regulation)

Bank
Current Previous
Year Year

Opening Retained Earning
Add: Adjustment
Add: T/f from acquired institutions
Less: Bonus Share Issued and Cash Dividend Paid
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Appropriations:
a. General reserve
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund
e. Employees' training fund
f. Other

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)
h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)
i. Other (+/-)
- Unrealized Gain on trading assets measured at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss

Total Distributable Profit or (Loss)

111



5. Disclosure & Additional Information

5.1 | Risk management
Credit risk
Market risk
Liquidityrisk
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
5.2 | Capital management
Bank or Financial Instituion shall disclose following information in regard of capital
management:
(i) Qualitative disclosures
Summary information of objectives, policies and processes for managing
capital, terms and conditions of the main features of all capital instruments,
especially in the case of innovative, complex or hybrid capital instruments.
(i) Quantitative disclosures
1. Capital structure and capital adequacy

o Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with
information on the outstanding amount, maturity, and amount raised
during the year and amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds.

o Deductions from capitla;

o Total qualifying capitla;

o Capital adequacy ratio;

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its
capital to support current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital
instruments, especially in case of subordinated term debts including
hybrid capital instruments.

2. Risk exposures

o Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational
Risk;

o Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk;

o Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;

o Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

(iii) Compliance with external requirement
Whether during the period it complied with any externally imposed capital
requirements to which it is subject and the consequences of such non-
compliance in case the institution has not complied with those requirements.
5.3 | Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
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5.4 Operating Segment Information
1. General information

(a) Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments

(b) Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable
segment derives its revenues

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Particulars Reportable | Reportable | Reportable | ........ Al Total

Segment1l | Segment2 | Segment 3 Other

(a) | Revenues from external customers

(b) | Intersegment revenues

(c) | Net Revenue

(d) | Interest revenue

(e) | Interest expense

(f) | Net interest revenue(b)

(9) | Depreciation and amortisation

(h) | Segment profit /(loss)

Entity’s interest in the profit or
loss of associates accounted for
(i) | using equity method

(i) | Other material non-cash items:

(k) | Impairment of assets

() | Segment assets

(m) | Segment liabilities

An entity shall disclose the following about each reportable segment if the specified
amounts are included in the measure of segment assets reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker or are otherwise regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker.

(@) Investment in associates accounted for by the equity method

(b) Amounts of additions to non-current assets other than financial instruments,
deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets and rights arising under
insurance contracts.

3.Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(a) Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments.

b) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’
y p g
profits or losses and the entity’s profit or loss before income tax.

(c) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’
assets and the entity’s asset.

(d) Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss and the effect, if any, and
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(e) Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.

4.Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities

(@ Revenue

Total revenues for reportable segments XXXX
Other revenues XXXX
Elimination of intersegment revenues (Xxxx)
Entity’s revenues XXXX

(b) Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments XXXX
Other profit or loss XXXX
Elimination of intersegment profits (XXxXX)
Unallocated amounts:
............ XXXX
............ (XxxXx)
Profit before income tax XXXX
(c) Assets
Total assets for reportable segments XXXX
Other assets XXXX
Unallocated amounts (XXxX)
Entity’s assets XXXX
(d) Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments XXXX
Other liabilities XXXX
Unallocated liabilities (XxxXx)
Entity’s liabilities XXXX

5. Information about products and services
Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1(b) above

(a) ............. XXXX
() | oo XXXX
(c) ............... XXXX

6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas

(a) | Domestic XXXX
Province 1 XXXX
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Province 2 XXXX
Province 3 XXXX
Province 4 XXXX
Province 5 XXXX
Province 6 XXXX
Province 7 XXXX

(b) | Foreign XXXX
Total XXXX

7. Information about major customers

Information about the extent of its reliance on its major customers, if revenue
from a single external customer amounts to 10 percent or more of the entity’s

revenue.
Particular Revenue | Segment
Customer 1* XXXX Segment 1
Customer 2* XXXX Segment 3
......... XXXX Segment 2
Total XXXX

* The entity does not need to disclose the name of the customer

5.5 | Share options and share based payment

5.6 | Contingent liabilities and commitment

5.7 | Related parties disclosures

5.8 | Merger and acquisition

5.9 | Additional disclosures of non consolidated entities
5.10 | Events after reporting date.

5.11 Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs

1. Reconciliation of equity

Total equity under Previous GAAP
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Impairment on loan and advances

Explanato
ry Note *

As at As at
01.04.2073 31.03.2074
(End of last
(Date ~ of  period presented
Transition) under previous

GAAP)

Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan

Lease accounting

Measurement of investment securities at fair value
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Revaluation of property & equipment
Recognition of investment property
Amortisation of debt securities issued
Deferred tax

Defined benefit obligation of employees
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain
Interest income

Other

Total Adjustment to equity

Total Equity under NFRSs

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which

transition effect has been arisen

2. Reconciliation of profit or loss

Explanatory
Note*

For the year ended
31.03.2074

(the latest period presented
under previous GAAP)

Previous GAAP

Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest income
Impairment of loan and advances
Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan
Defined benefit obligation of employee
Operating lease expense
Amortisation expense of debt securities
Other operating income
Interest expense
Depreciation & Amortisation
Other

Total Adjustment to profit or loss

Profit or loss under NFRSs
Other Comprehensive Income

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which

transition effect has been arisen
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3. Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial position

As at 31.03.2074
(End of last period

As at 01.04.2073 presented under previous
(Date of Transition) GAAP)
Y = > Y S
% X @ ° .5 A ° % E= I .E F =8
icul S8 3o 2K _— sc S8EX £ ¢
Particulars %2 S GEuL >, 58 S< g&2L 3 §
< 'S < £ S v Ec L < Swg € ,u
< a0 Wk S8 sXIS8F Al OokF £ a2z
QL «© £ 3
Assets

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Derivative financial instruments
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to B/FIs
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities

Current tax assets

Investment in susidiaries
Investment in associates
Investment property

Property and equipment
Goodwill and Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions

Due to Nepal Rastra
Bank

Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers
Borrowing

Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Debt securities issued
Subordinated Liabilities

Total liabilities
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Equity

Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity holders
Non-controlling interest

Total equity -
Total liabilities and
equity

* Explanatory note is required for each line item which has been impacted by transition

4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

9 For the year ended 31.03.2074
> (the latest period presented under
> previous GAAP)
=] = o O -
- 32 <% ¢ EBg
Particulars = S } 23S o e
< et i G T E , L
] a O WF=cZz <acZ

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission income

Net trading income

Other operating income

Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans
and other losses

Net operating income

Operating expense
Personnel expenses

Other operating expenses
Depreciation & Amortisation
Operating Profit

Non operating income
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Non operating expense
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total Comprehensive

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which
transition effect has been arisen

5. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of cash flows

For the vyear ended 31.03.2074
(the latest period presented under

> previous GAAP)
(@]
c Previou Effect  of Amount
Particulars % *SS s GAAP Transition as  per
oS to NFRSs NFRSs
Net cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period
* Explanatory note is required for each line item
Format for Interim Financial Reporting
Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank
Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly)
......... Quarter ended of Fiscal Year 20...../20.....
Rs. in '000'
. . ... This Quarter | Previous Corresponding
Statement of Financial Position Ending Quarter Ending | Previous Quarter
Ending

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from NRB and placements with BFIs
Loan and advances

Investments Securities
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Investment in subsidiaries and associates
Goodwill and intangible assets
Other assets

Total Assets

Capital and Liabilities

Paid up Capital

Reserves and surplus

Deposits

Borrowings

Bond and Debenture

Other liabilities and provisions

Total Capital and Liabilities

Statement of Profit or Loss

Up to this
Quarter

Up to Previous
Quarter

Up to
Corrosponding
Previous Year
Quarter

Interest income

Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Other operating income
Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other
losses

Net operating income

Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Operating profit

Non operating income/expense
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit /(loss) for the period

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss

Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment as per NRB
Directive

Profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments
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Ratios

Capital fund to RWA

Nonperforming loan (NPL) to al loan (As per NRB Directive)

Total loan loss provision to Total NPL (As per NRB Directive)

Cost of Funds
Credit to Deposit Ratio ( As per NRB Directive)
Base Rate

Basic Earnings Per Share

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Segmental Reporting

The reportable segment of each bank may differ from the other; the commercial banks should publish the segmental
reporting as per the requirement of NFRSs in their own format.

Name of the Bank or Financial Institution

Comparison Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY ....... [eveeranes
Rs. in
'000'
Statement of Financial Position As ~ per | As ~ per| Variance Reasons
unaudited Audited in n% for
Financial Financial Variance
amount
Assets Statement Statement

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from NRB and placements with BFIs
Loan and advances

Investments Securities

Investment in subsidiaris and associates
Goodwill and intangible assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Capital and Liabilities

Paid up Capital

Reserves and surplus

Deposits

Borrowings

Bond and Debenture

Other liabilities and provisions

Total Capital and Liabilities

Statement of Profit or Loss

Interest income
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Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Other operating income
Total operaing income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and
other losses

Net operating income

Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Operating profit

Non operating income/expense
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit /(loss) for the period

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss

Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment as per
NRB Directive
Profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments

Brief explanations on accounts head of the Statement of Financial Position

Assets Side
1. Cash and cash equivalent

This account shall be used for presenting the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with
other bank and financial institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the
licensed institution in the management of its short term commitments.

2. Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities
purchased from Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement and other deposits with and
receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank shall be presented under this account head.

3. Placement with bank and financial institutions
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Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original
maturities of more than three months from the acquisition date are presented under this
account head

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes shall be presented
under this head.

Other trading assets

Trading assets are those assets that the licensed institution acquires principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together
for short-term profit shall be presented under this account head. The other trading asset
includes non derivative financial assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds,
Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading
purpose.

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances given to bank and financial institutions shall be presented under this
head. Specific impairment on loan and advance to bank and financial institutions shall be
deducted.

Loan and advances to customers.

Under this head, sum of the outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the
customers other than BFIs as well as bills purchased and discounted less the amount of
impairment allowances shall be presented. Loan to employees provided according to the
Employees Bylaws of the licensed institution shall also be presented under this head.

Investments securities

Investments made by the licensed institutions in financial instruments shall be presented
under this account head in three categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and
investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Investment other than those measured at amortized cost shall be measure at fair value and
changes in fair value shall be recognized in profit or loss, or other comprehensive income
as per the business model adopted by the infrastructure developmentbank for the specific
securities. Where income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the
valuation of investment shall be made by increasing the number of shares only without
changing in the cost of investment. The financial institutions shall disclose following
particulars in respect of investment in shares and debenture/bond.

a. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in shares of
other companies
(1) Name of the company

(2) Type of share (ordinary or preference), in case of preference shares, including
the rate of dividend.

(3) Total number of shares subscribed (including bonus shares if received).
(4) Face value per share
(5) The cost price to licensed institution.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

(6) Fair value of the shares at the end of the fiscal year.

(7) Where a company, in which the licensed institution has investment in shares, has
not declared dividend for previous 3 years, particulars indicating the same.

b. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in debentures
and bonds of other companies

(1) Name of the company

(2) Rate of Interest

(3) Installment of Debenture/bond subscribed.

(4) Face value per debenture/bond.

(5) Maturity date of debenture/bond

(6) The purchase price of the debentures/bond

(7) Fair value of the debentures/bond measured at fair value

The infrastructure developmentbank shall recognize impairment loss if any on the
investment instruments measured at amortized cost. The calculation of impairment loss
shall be as per requirement of NFRSs.

The infrastructure developmentbank shall recognize, measure, present and disclose the
investment instruments as per the requirement of NFRSs.

Current tax assets

This will include any advance payment made by the licensed institution towards income
tax liabilities or other tax liabilities to the taxing authorities.

Investment in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities that are controlled by the bank. Investment made by the bank
in its subsidiaries shall be presented in this head under separate financial statements.
Since, the investment amount is eliminated in consolidation process, no amount shall be
presented under group financial statements.

Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the bank has significant influence but not control
over the financial and operating policies. Investment made by the bank in its associates
shall be presented in this head under this account head.

Investment properties

Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment; and non
current assets held for sale under relevant accounting standard shall be presented under
this account head. This shall include land, land and building acquired as non banking
assets by the Bank but not sold.

Property and equipment

All assets of long-term nature (fixed) like land, building, IT equipment, fixtures and
fittings, office equipment and appliances, vehicles, machinery, leasehold developments
and capital work in progress owned by the licensed institution shall be presented under
this head.

Goodwill and intangible assets
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15.

16.

Goodwill and intangible assets like computer software both purchased and internally
generated, trade mark etc. shall be presented under this account head.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry
forward of unused tax losses, changes in tax rate etc. shall be presented under this account
head.

Other Assets

This account will include any other tangible or intangible asset not mentioned above.
Assets held for sale, non banking assets (other than land or land and building), restricted
deposits with central banks, accounts receivable, interest receivable, accrued income,
prepayments and deposit are some of the items to be included under this head.

Liabilities and Equity side

1.

Due to bank and financial institutions

The balances in accounts maintained with the institution by other local and foreign banks
and financial institution shall be presented under this head. Interbank borrowing,
interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount
due to bank and financial institution shall be presented under this account head.

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

This account head shall also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank.
Amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity
facility, lender of last resort, sale and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

Derivative financial instruments

It includes all derivative liabilities. Derivative instruments like interest rate swap,
currency swap, forward foreign exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk
management purposes shall be presented under this head.

Deposits from customers
All deposit accounts other than deposit from BFIs (local and foreign) and NRB shall be
presented under this account head.

Borrowing

All domestic as well as foreign borrowing other than interbank borrowing and borrowing
from Nepal Rastra Bank shall be presented under this heading. It includes borrowing from
Nepal Government, borrowing from other domestic institutions, borrowing from foreign
bank and financial institutions, multilateral development banks etc.

Current Tax Liabilities

The liabilities recognized for the purpose of current income tax, including fees, penalties
shall be included under this head.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when as a result of a past event, the licensed institution has a
present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provision
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10.

11.

for redundancy, provision for onerous contracts, provision for restructuring, pending legal
issues and tax litigation, credit commitments and guarantees etc. shall be presented under
this account head. Followings are the additional clarification on accounts presented under
this account head.

(a) Provision for Redundancy

It shall include benefits payable as a result of employment being terminated or based
on a dismissal plan of the licensed institution. Provision for employees' termination
benefits like voluntary retirement scheme shall be presented under this account head.

(b) Provision for restructuring

Restructuring includes sale or termination of a line of business, closure of business
locations or relocation in a region, changes in management structure, fundamental
reorganizations that have a material effect on the nature and focus of the bank’s
operations etc. The provision of restructuring that is recognized as per the requirement
of NFRSs shall be presented under this account head

(c) Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Provisions recognized for any pending legal issues and tax litigation matters shall be
presented under this account head.

(d) Onerous contracts

Provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived
by the licensed institution from a contract is lower than the unavoidable cost of
meeting its obligation under the contract. The provision amount that is recognized for
onerous contract as per NFRSs shall be presented under this heading.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in
respect of taxable temporary differences, shall be included under this head. Deferred tax
liabilities that are recognised as per requirement of NFRSs shall be presented under this
account head.

Other liabilities

Any residual liabilities not captured above, shall be presented under an appropriate head
in this account. Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit
obligation gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for long-service leave, cash settled share
based payment liabilities, short-term employee benefits etc., Creditors and accruals,
Interest payable on deposit and borrowing, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. shall
be presented under this account head.

Debt securities issued
Debenture, bond or other debt securities issued by bank shall be presented under this
broad account head.

Subordinated Liabilities

Liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt
securities issued and other creditors shall be included here. It shall include redeemable
preference share, subordinated notes issued, borrowingsetc.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

Share capital

The amount of paid up share capital of the licensed institution shall be mentioned under
this head. Amount credited in share capital by issuing bonus shares utilizing the
accumulated profit and reserves shall also be disclosed under this heading. This shall
include paid up amount of ordinary share capital and equity component of preference
share capital. The convertible preference shares which includes an option for the holder of
the shares to convert the preferred shares into a fixed number of ordinary shares at any
time after a predetermined date, irredeemable preference share and perpetual debt
instruments, the equity component that is recognized and measured as per NFRSs as
equity as well shall be presented under this heading.

Share premium

The amount of money collected on issue of shares in excess of its face value shall be
presented under this heading. The outstanding amount in this account shall not be
considered eligible for distribution of cash dividend.

Retained earnings

The accumulated profits which has not been distributed to shareholders and has been
ploughed back in the licensed institution’s operations and is free for distribution of
dividend to the shareholders shall be presented under this heading.

Reserves

Licensed institution shall include the amounts received from allocation of profits or
retained earnings in connection with maintaining reserves or created from any other
process. Normally, amount shall be credited to this heading having debited the
accumulated profit and while using these reserves, the concerned reserve account shall
have to be debited. Followings are the additional clarification of account head under
reserve.

(a) General Reserve:

General reserve is the statutory reserve. In this reserve, the amount transformed
from appropriation of net profit according to the Banks and Financial Institutions
Act, 2073 shall be included. No type of dividend (cash or bonus share) shall be
distributed from the amount in general/statutory reserve. Approval of NRB shall be
required in order to use the amount in this reserve.

(b) Exchange Equalization reserve

Exchange equalization reserve is a statutory reserve. A bank which has earned
foreign exchange revaluation gain on foreign currency other than India currency has
to allocate 25 percent of such revaluation gain to this reserve as per provision of the
Bank and Financial Institution Act. Any amount allocated to exchange equalization
reserve as per the provision of the Bank and Financial Institutions Act, shall be
presented under this heading.

(c) Fair Value Reserves

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets that are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is
recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. The
cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets shall be
presented under this account head.
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(d)Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment,
Intangible Assets, Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading.
Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not
be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in
market values and tax consequences of revaluation.

(e) Capital Reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of
capital and which shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The
amount from share forfeiture due to non-payment of remaining amount for the
unpaid shares, capital grants received in cash or kind, capital reserve arising out of
merger and acquisition etc should be presented under this heading.

(f) Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive
or special instruction of NRB shall represent special reserve. The amount allocated
to this reserve by debiting retained earning account shall be presented under this
heading.

(g) Capital Redemption Reserve

This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards
Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares.

(h) Dividend Equalization Fund
For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of
profit during the year of profit making may be transferred shall be presented under
this account head. Dividend may be distributed by debiting this account with the
approval of the Board of Directors and endorsed by the General meeting.

(i) Capital Adjustment/Equalization Fund

Any amount that is allocated from the amount retained profit to a reserve that is
created for the raising capital of the Bank as well as calls is advance amount to
make up minimum paid up capital amount shall be presented under this account
head.

(J) Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating
profit shall be presented under this account head.

(k) Investment Adjustment Reserve

It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in bank's
investments as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

(I) Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve

Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value
employee obligations shall be presented under this account head.

(m) Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this
reserve as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRSs
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and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as
bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head. The amount allocated to
this reserve shall include interest income recognized but not received in cash,
difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and
advance as per NFRSs (in case lower impairment is recognized under NFRSS),
amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss recognized in other comprehensive
income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRSs etc.

(n) Other Reserve Fund

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above)
shall be presented under this by disclosing accounting heads.

16. Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the portion of equity ownership in a subsidiary not
attributable to the parent company, which has a controlling interest and consolidates the
subsidiary's financial results with its own. The bank who has a subsidiary and
consolidates the financial statement of subsidiary in its own shall present the equity
portion of the subsidiary that are attributable to the shareholders other than the bank under
this account head.

Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Profit or Loss Account

1.

Interest income

The interest income recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. This
heading shall include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except
on those investment securities measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and and
cash equivalent, due from Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff
etc.

Interest expense

The interest expenses recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. The
interest accrued on deposits collected, debt securities issued, borrowings obtained,
subordinated liabilities, amount due to bank and financial institutions, due to NRB etc.
shall be presented under this heading.

Fees and commission income

Fee income is earned for diverse ranges of services provided by the bank to its customers.
Fee income arises on the execution of a significant act completed or from provision of
services like asset management, portfolio management, management advisory and service
fees etc. Loan documentation fee, loan management fee, consortium fee, commitment fee,
card issuance and renewal fees, prepayment and swap fee, remittance fee, investment
banking fee, asset management fee, brokerage, commission on letter of credit,
commission on guarantee, locker rental income, etc. should be presented under this
heading. The fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on
the financial assets are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate and shall
not be recognized as income, however immaterial amount can be recognized in profit or
loss account as income.

Fees and commission expense

Payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the bank shall be
presented under this account head. This account head shall include card related fees,
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10.

11.

guarantee commission, brokerage expenses etc. The fees and commission expense that
are integral to the effective interest rate on the financial liability are included in the
measurement of the effective interest rate and shall not be recognized as expense

Net trading income

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and
includes all realized interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as
unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities shall be presented under
this account head.

Other operating income

Receipt of all other operating income not specifically provided under the income heads
above shall be booked and presented under this head. This shall include foreign exchange
revaluation gain, gain/loss on sale of available for sale securities, dividend on available
for sale securities, gain/loss on sale of property and equipment, gain/loss on sale of
investment properties, operating lease income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver,
finance income of finance lease etc.

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses.

Impairment loss recognized as per NFRSs on loan and other losses shall be presented
under this account head. It shall includes impairment charge/reversal on loan and
advances to customers, loan and advances to bank and financial institutions, investment
securities, placement with bank and financial institutions, property and equipment,
goodwill and intangible assets, investment properties etc.

Personnel expenses

All expenses related to employees of a bank shall be included under this head. Expenses
covered under this head include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity,
contribution to provident fund, training expenses, uniform expenses, insurance, staff
bonus, finance expense under NFRSs, cash-settled share-based payments etc.

Other Operating expenses

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and
presented under this account head. The expenses covered under this account head shall
include office administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors'
emoluments, remuneration and non audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal
expense, branch closure cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructuring,
impairment of non financial assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous
lease provisions etc.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its
useful life. Amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an
intangible asset over its useful life.Depreciation measured and recognized as per NFRSs
on property and equipment, and investment properties, and amortization of intangible
assets shall be presented under this account head.

Non operating income/expense
The income and expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of
transactions shall be presented under this head. The income/expense covered under this
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account head shall include loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy provision,
expense of restructuring etc.

12. Income tax expense

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit shall be recognized and presented under
this account head. This account head shall include current tax expense and deferred tax
expense/deferred tax income.

Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income

1.

Fair value reserve relating to investment in equity instruments

Net changes in fair value of equity instrument that are measured at fair value and the
changes in fair value is required to be recognized in other comprehensive income shall be
recognized and presented under this account head. The changes may be subsequently
reclassified to profit and loss in accordance with the relevant NFRSs shall also be
deducted from the fair value reserve.

Changes in revaluation reserve
Changes in revalued amount of property and equipment, and intangible assets shall be
presented under this account head.

Cash flow hedge

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the variability in
cash flows attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction that could affect profit or loss, the effective portion
of changes in the fair value (losses) of the derivative is recognised and presented in Other
comprehensive income under this account head. The changes may be subsequently
reclassified to profit and loss in accordance with the relevant NFRSs shall also be
deducted from the fair value reserve.

Net actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans

Re-measurement gain/losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income and shall be presented under this account head.

Income tax relating to these items

The income tax relating to the items shown in other comprehensive income shall be
presented under this head.
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qatar faera Sher wRERAr ffed w9, @oEeH, avedn, aWR, rwer qar faxef fafrea
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1.

NICERSELS ]

I3 SIEH A0 AT JAR W FEAFEITAT AT T7g | TAEHT  Siad
T TG | AN G ¥ G3E SIGH HaeATIqard GHIEER GEed T g TR
SIEH AT FE 07 Giqagar a<h THIe |

SifeH e F1AHA (Risk Management Program)
(§)  FIATA FEIHT SETITHIGTHE [quges FHed T SAEH FGIaq F=AT HIH
TATAS ARG T IoF AL GiRg AR (Oversight),
I TaH IR fawaerr qatear,
THATIHT SE@H 2aedd= &1 (Risk Managmenet Function),
U AT AT JOITeAl, T
THTARRT AT AT JOTedl TaH FrAr (Limit)
() gATaR Faebra Fpbr Gearers atafaer Fearer dew 9 e sifan (RiskAppetite)

¥ Gearars yred & G (Tolerance Limit) wfesm w8 sifew worfif 7 Toss; |
YLATH] HY FAMGH LTI AN Fo=Tereh AT IRl B0, |

(3) TATR fasra SeAr d=afied @@ Hecd gagd sifaw (Material Risks) @7 @t
T G T FATET AR FooATdE qrA(qare @ihd gaads I @l Ald a9t
FrAfA FETHT A AU THICE AEADT TH a9 ATGeTE SFGUAT TR
I T I | T FEATHN SMGH AT q¥ag AId, Hrrarg T gtnare
FATEIT T oo FAAMAAD] Hed B | P Goarad A T I=A
FEATITIAA FIEH T Giqaas HIHT THIFHT THIF T AETHAT 87 TAGF
THAAT AT T FARA  THIAS, |

X X w02

(¥) gatar faebra e yH@ Sifew wfaed (ChiefRiskOfficer - CRO) a1 &t @wm

U A YT T A S AT FER AT T TG | GETR ATHR

TaH  FRERH [aRTEa™T dERes g TR A[Eededl I aR 9o Sias

FEATITIAHT AT GErge a1 AR TS/ HETTEIH Iaed] T Al | Siaw

EAEITIH FIA FIETHAT TETTHT [ATTEE THCATIS |

. SifeAgeEer A a9 FEfalyer aeHr qur wEmEtae T g aenare
FTITYT T,

2 TATIR g Sehepl Fel BTINA ThTeeTRl HANT S@Heb! (HatHa ST T
TIT AUt SfgHaTe HuEaesars TaT THIHET T RIS,
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3 WIEH gEeT giaded IR T T 97 9iqded SiEH ey giAfay aeerash
gtafaar g9 9, T

¥, SIEH ERATI FAHE qo TEEwH] TAEFN FEAFITHAT TES TATS |

(W) qATIR fabTa ST ATHR, TeBid UaH FEFT AETH g9 TR THE SaH Afdehde!
FH, FIA ¥ AIPR Ieol@ T T9S | THE FGH Adehael dh goarelsd qramd

E; \ﬁ ﬁ ﬁ f% ﬁ \ﬁr i ; ~c |

(%) FIEIE FA T AGH FAGEIT BAATS F (hGHbT @rd=artsma (Conflict of
Interest) T AAPH T8 | O, SEH FGAMUAATS  SMGH  FAT9H
faamT /gl AT FTEHETRr T9ET faq g3 | SIEH awara{ e A SAaanded
F& (Main Business Function) afest gremerT (First Line of Defence) @I &9HT 389
AEAYTF B | ALATHT YA HHART SAGH ATEITATHT AN AT-ATHFT AT
TRT RN SiteH F&kia (Risk Culture) %1 faera T 9=, |

(©)  SlifEw OHIG dET AfEaHATs eI “ged T =meewl siew” (Risk Appetite) T
e g G (Tolerance Limit) i 38w T defas daa s=afve fa=or gorrer
(Internal Control System)®@H IS | AARE (AT JUTAlRl Faadl I
TATAAT HART g T FEATAT TATIHN] @I gATAH] Foelieleh ATATT /STTEH
FeTIE afafd gfaag gas |

(5) G 4 IERH qadd wiraHes (Al Material Risks)®r sraearadar  anfiT
FTATEATHT Igehl A, GHAT TaH JHE SME@H Aldedddl HAae Siad qemad
gv= (Risk Governance Structure) @-Tace! fawd Il aritie gfdqasd qarR T0
TP a9 AT TR T HiEATa Feaiega GAREeT [HRTAT T T, |

STEH aTHT

THTEEN SIGH SFATITHT AT FEITA IRTITHINTH SAMGHBT TR TS, o

(@) FAT SAMEH |

(@) H=TA S |

) AT A |

(&)  &§R SEH |

(3) =ATSIEY SIREH |

@) Tl fafaaa siree |

@ A SEH |

FA SIGH T G| qqeT

(VTF Separe TR TRUFT “FSit qAT GlauTaEy gEe (M | )7 ¥ ‘UHd ew

JAT & FoAl A9S T GlagThl AT MR g (Maed | 3) qdr
AT FEedr (e §. ) ATE q F 97 AT GE SiEH A
T AR TG faqa 3

FAT SAMgHH afe=T, ATAA, AHA T =0 T4 G0 g T FeaTel I9a<h Ald
JaT Frafafy dEerFaT TH gAIS |

AT QATTH g5 | JATaR (I Sehehl ATHR TAH FRIARDT ATt
HATIRHT oA HIARATIAATS TATANAT ol AT TL IS, |

qataR faere S% o @ gweg FAes: Business Solicitation, #SIT HeATsA, el
Bfd, ®o yaEe qar HORATR G R ST Fhe gglgg gd g
AT TWH g B |
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TRIAATHAATS TEHATR] FFewd ATLATTAH] IUAIN TTHT T AT FTHT [
g |

qaTgR faE Sehehl AoATAAd AHATAS qT TRl “Fed I wTesl wirad” (Risk
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#9Td (Credit to Core Capital and Domestic Deposits — CCD)20 it ATeA A8+ T
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T ZFETF gIITT#E T CCD Ratio 7977 &l GraiHa Gofl#l &FAT HAleer
TTHATGAT FITH TUF FIITF JoAlcais 0aqg F91 Ta7 I 7 @& [Teqsr gaHar
GIET feaerl eFaenrs g gie | a7, FIHI GEICT YUl §FYE @97 U7 FPO @
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Liabilities Committee - ALCO) Sr&ar fafits @=mr #1a¥ wal gag | @R
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fercrepr QU famforT S Fafeasror faammT JoreT o |
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TR fgH LT T GFT g
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AT TaH TSR &l IRIAFESHT ATSH IARACEAR] FRY (ST g Tl HATT
TR AMGHP! AAATTAHT AT FEATET ATTLAF AT AT Frafard gae |

HY FgLarad  (Treasury Management)d T S¥afegd SIf@H  FHA, HMOF TaH
fergeroorer @i Middle office ®amaaT U= | a&d1 Office #Y qa=da F¥a=il
14 (Treasury Functions) aTe @@= &l @ I Office o SifaH =a=amas
[T/ TahreeTs AT RAifdg T |

FTEX FEgH FTITIT T G FaeT

Q@

T 3fea Hifq qar FEfatg gIe |

(}) ATSIIRATE T g SAMGHATE FATHLIT T I8 THITHHT IJTAGE FATAFIA THIG,

(%) SATIGIAT FUH TRATAR FRU GAMGT g7 GFIaee qd1 naces (Interest
Sensitive Assets and Liabilities) &g #T9 ¥t T SAEAHT FHEALT THIE,
|

(@) TSR AMGAATS Fafead T9T A0 TH Foid (a9 AL THITTHD
foraor Smmfaer (7€, q@, 99 ¥ d9@R HATR) FYAET JIR TN TIATE JHT
qUT QU fGAtaT 79 el S qUiALT fa9RTET T97 TS, |
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(3) ST SMGHH ARHA T4 fdgq 99 F877 = (Time Interval) @1 afieeor Tar
FT 3 ATAR I |

(¢) fafr=ra e s@fs (Fixed Maturity Period) S9Us gwafq o1 smacadrs de1d
FHINTH THTALT TS, -
(@) [AlY=ra qehrl ety THTwT gafaee

() wTafaes FYHT SATSER GHMEG g T gate aRuw wai (Floating rate
loan with interest adjusted periodically) &% <= srafawr @TeERY
THTATST TR, el THT A=A TS THEL TS, |
() HT ATEY (G IRATTIT FATATT g (T I [qefebl SATSIEY) A
JATE TRURT ATA(dE BT ATl FH AR THA AT
THTALT I |
(@)= qRRTHT A9 AURT SIAEs
ATTGIHT AUH IRAAAH] HRO TATNTT g1 M= Fhrl  qafs 9w
aifreae® (Interest SensitiveLiabilities, Floating Rate Liabilities etc.) =g #r
S HATTHT SATSEY FHETS (e, WEl THT AT q GHTEL TS, |
() ¥=R (Gap) W 8T SHISH T 998 -
(@) fafa=r 9T ARIAH ATSER Faaaefia grafaere sarsier gagaefia s
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() ATSIEAT g9 T geAfaa gfkadddrs @At (Estimate) fHIA@ | 4T
TATSTAH] ATRT FTATATAT q FTA SATSER GRadAde 99 oH A9ReATs 2+
Jrpas;, |

()  9REdT g1 ATHE TRUH ATSER IIEUE () FHISTH Jdd FHT AIAh
THATATTHT FAEANAT g1 T R THI=s | A1 Garsae! Miad sarseer
g4 @umEfad @rwe? qieadq (Interest Rate Change - IRC) ©TE SeTaer!

YT AATAHT Teehl o /3%y fao

Y

STET i~ 9 a9 SATSER aREdT WOAT, 40 fadH 9T AR gal

Interest Rate Change (IRC) = 20/3%4X0.09 = 0.00%Y%

(%) @ 7ar afeg Far (New Product) T JFERUT IR &l SATSIEIH! IALHASTAH]
FRUT FEITHT ATTATTHT TEAT SAfFg FATHN FRU T FEAH FeATFT THIS, | SATTR
SR gfetd T Pricing ¥ Repricing @ maq gfdeqaicds  faeeroor
(Competitive Analysis) T==dT fafy qar Tordifaes astar M0 any 19 Gfed il
G |

R, faxf fafvw wifew sa=umue v Fwa=iT =g

Q) faeeft faf e = g7 Iar=eEde IO AifeaAdrs Saa=drad 9 gtad Jia q9r
FrEfaly gOMs | [HEaEdl SaREedde A UAH USiAl qega  qeqtad
SGAEBT HATFT T |
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g EeIT FFET ARrE
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7Y faoad T gEfead R qRIAEs |

IURT (§) THINTH GRS TXTHT MG AT TRAATHINTT 9T T FTH FRATET T

fEe FHINTH 9T TR /A |
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A wisih

e srafaet faawun

qrSI TS S FHIHT TS G g &I, Al qHad] dear-gd Bucket AT e |

R Rt ATl AT ATHRS] FFaead Bucket HT e |

JITegar St =g | 7 GHAAT GldT o g AULT RUHN B Ael qAHAS! gFaiead Bucket AT A& |

F.F. 30, 1T R F | THAD d6F AT GIOdETH FHAT qHAT A AR Fraraa Bucket 1 T

GIEEIEAR ARl STHTA®! 8FHT 1 au9=aT Jerdl Bucket AT e |

a7 iFes THEd (MaeMa! (Mae 7 4 A ga%dT TR FHITH T |

A

qugT higad 1 3fg <o fa7® Bucket AT & |

AR faqa o AR STl ATaRE geafrad Bucket AT e |

ATHTAT faqa =aTe AR FAT ATAREF] F¥rad Bucket AT & |

TFTIEE M= sehTl satd WUHT AFRATHT ARl FHINH T TAUR FALATHT 9 I 40
fa@! Bucket T & |
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q0. Choose File are smear Upload

=zl FileSelect =

99. Save T

& e Upload w8 Submit sget File

IREGT T T @ THINHST 6T

HAAFA T

9. Reports Upload List Click

R. wwfegd Afewr v Category fae wér
View Columnsr zz=ricon clicks

3. Unlock Request Button Click

¥. Unlock Details Windowaes,
rgarResubmit Reason: * @1 %+ wgar
FRU =G T

4. Saverd
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wr Upload swet File Submit w1
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TIATIAITKT FEATETA THATET GLATH [ (Entity Profile) ATAIE A are

SN

Particulars

Detail Informations
(Not exhaustive)

Update Frequency (in
SIS)

Deadline for
Update (in SIS)

>

Entity Details Page

1. Primary Information

Organization Chart,
Authorised & Paid up Capital,
Contact details

As & when change occurs

Within 7 days of
Change

2. Details of
Committee

Committee Name, Members Name,
Designation, Start Date, etc.

As & when change occurs

Within 7 days of
Change

3. Ownership Details

Ownership type, Percentage, Host
Country Name, Name of Investors etc.

As & when change occurs

Within 7 days of
Change

4. Subsidiary/Associate
s Details

Type of Subsidiary, Name of Subsidiary,
Holding percentage, etc.

As & when change occurs

Within 7 days of
Change

5. Details of Board of
Directors

Name, Father & Grandfather Name, Type,
Representation from, Contact details,
PAN, Term, Biodata, Declaration on Code
of Conduct, Citizenship Certificate,
Qualification Certificate, etc.

As & when change occurs

Within 7 days of
Change

6. Details of Auditors

Name, Type, Contact details, etc.

As & when change occurs

Within 7 days of
Change

7. Details of
Management Team

Name, Designation, Father & Grandfather
Name, Contact details, PAN, Biodata, etc.

As & when change occurs

Within 7 days of
Change

8. Details of Chief
Executive Officer
(CEO)

Name, Designation, Father & Grandfather
Name, Contact details, PAN, Biodata,
Appointment letter, Citizen Certificate,
etc.

As & when change occurs

Within 7 days of
Change

9. Details of
Compliance and

Name, Designation, Father & Grandfather
Name, Contact details, PAN, etc.

As & when change occurs

Within 7 days of
Change
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Reporting Officer

10. Annual General
Meeting Report
and Resolution

Attachment of AGM Report and
Resolution

As & when change occurs

Within 7 days of
Change

11. Policies and
Procedures

Policy Name, Category, Effective Date,
Approved by, Attachment of the
document

As & when change or
update occurs

Within 7 days of
Change or update

Type, Location, Contact Details, Vault

When branch opened,

On the date of
operation start, close

B | Branch Details Page Capacity, etc. closed or relocated or relocate
On the date of
Branchless Banking Related Branch, Agent Details, Contact When BLB opened, closed operation start, close
c | Details Page Details, Location, etc. or relocated or relocate
On the date of
Related Branch, Location, ATM Capacity, When ATM opened, closed | operation start, close
D | ATM Details Page etc. or relocated or relocate
Base Rate, Deposit Type, Deposit Interest
rate, Loan Type, Min./Max Interest Rate, within 7 days of end of
Deposit/Loan Product Min./Max. Premium Rate, Effective date, the month or
E | Details Page etc. Monthly & after change Change

1S
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